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Independent Auditor's Report on Financial Statementis

Members of the City Council
City Of Pharr, Texas

201 West Park Avenue
Pharr, Texas 78577

Members of the Members of the City Council:

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities”, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City Of Pharr, Texas as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed
in the table of comntents. These financial statements are the responsibility of City Of Pharr, Texas's
management. My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit.

| conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that | plan and petform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statemenis are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staternents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principtes used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audit provides
a reasonable basis for my opinions.

In my opinion, the financial statements* referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities*, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of City Of Pharr, Texas as of September 30, 2006, and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, | have also issued my report dated May 1, 2007, on
my consideration of City Of Pharr, Texas's internal control over financial reperting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreemenis and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internai control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this repart in considering the
results of my audit.

The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary information identified as Required
Supplementary Information in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by accounting principies generally accepted in the United States of
America. | have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However,
| did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

My audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements which collectively
comprise the City Of Pharr, Texas's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of



federal awards required by U. S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of Stafes,
Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations and the combining financial statements and supporting
schedules listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements. This information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in my opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

* Except that the Utilty Fund was audited seperatly by Reyna and Garza PLLC, Certified Public Accountants
and issued a nonqualified opnion.

@ué%w’d

Oscar R. Gonzalez CPA

May 1, 2007
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Management's Discussion and Analysis



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of City Of Pharr, Texas's annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the City's
financial performance during the fiscal vear ended September 30, 2006. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s
financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

*  The City's total combined net assets were $95,366,020 at September 30, 2008.

¢ During the vear, the City’s expenses were $34,141,159 and $37,668,008 were generated in taxes and other
revenues for governmental activities. For business-type activities the city’s expenses were $11,786,345 and
city’s revenues were $17,987,791.

®  The general fund reported a fund balance this year of $7,600,364.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of three parts—management’s discussion and
analysis (this section), the basic financial statements, and required

supplementary information. The basic financial statements include two
kinds of staterments that present different views of the City:

that provide both long-ferm and short-ferm information about the

City’s overall financial status.

e The first two statements are governmeni-wide financial stafements :

Figure A-1F, Requited Components of the
City’s Annnal Financial Report

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus
on individual parts of the government, reporting the City’s operations

: BN
Wanagement s Basic Required
Tiacasdion Financial Supplementary
Information
el Statements
Aualysce

in mere detail than the government-wide statements.

The governmental funds statements tell how general government
services were financed in the short ferm as well as what remains for

future spending.

Proprietary fund statements offer shorf- and fong-ferm financial
informaticn about the activities the government operates fike

‘| Government-Wide |/

Fund

businesses.

*  Fiduciary fund statements provide information about the financial
relationships in which the City acts solely as a frustee or agent for

the benefit of others, to whom

the resources in question
belong_ ; ; Fund Statements
_Tvpeof Statements | __ Government-wide ... ). . Goyermmengal Funds....|... Proprietary Famds
! . EEﬂﬁW Agency’s government EThe activities of the district i Activities the district
The financial statements also include lexcept fiduciary funds)  {that are not proprietary or  joperates similas to private
notes that exp|ain some of the Scape iand the Agency's component {fiduciary businesses: self insurance
[ }
information  in  the financial e 5
- 1
statements and provide more :

detailed data. The statements are
followed by a section of required
supplementary  information  that
further explains and supports the
information in the financial
statements. Figure A-1 shows how
the required parts of this annual
report are arranged and related fo
one another.

Figure A-2 summarizes the major
features of the City’'s financial
statements, including the portion of

Finangcial
Statements

Financial
Statements

Figure A-2. Major Features of the District's Government-wide and Fund Financial Staiements

Accounting basis
and measurement
Jocus

Typeof
inflow/outflow

information

1 Accrual accounting and

i .
IECOHOT!TIG resources focus
I

JAll revenues andt
lexpenses during year,
Iregardless of when cash

lis received or paid

Modified accrual
accounting and current
financial resoyrces focus

Revenues for which cash
is received during or soon
after the end of the year,
expenditures when goods
or services have been
received and payment is
due during the year or

{Accrual accounting and

i .

| economic resources focus
H

_____ Fidueisry Funds _____
Instances in which the
district is the trastes or

agent for someone else's
TESOUIces

1Accrual accounting and

i .

{economic resources focus
H

1All revenues and expenses
Edun'ng year, regardless of
twhen cash Is received or

v GATE:
LAll revenues and
iexpenses during year,
{regardless of when cash
is received or paid



the City government they cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of
management's discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods similar to
those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net assets includes all of the government’s assets and
liabilities. All of the current year’'s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardiess

of when cash is received or paid.

The two government-wide statements report the City's net assets and how they have changed. Net assets — the
difference between the City’s assets and liabilittes—is one way to measure the City’s financial health or position.

* QOver time, increases or decreases in the City’s net assets are an indicator of whether its financial health is
improving or deteriorating, respectively.

s To assess the overall health of the City, one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as
changes in the City’s tax base

The government-wide financial statements of the City include the Governmental activities. Most of the City’s basic
services are included here, such as general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation, economic
development, culture and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. Property taxes and grants finance most of these
activities.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed informalion about the City’s most significant funds—not the City
as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and
spending for particular purposes.

¢ Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants.

e The City Council establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that
it is properly using cerfain taxes and grants.

The City has the following kinds of funds:

s Governmental funds—Most of the City’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on (1)
how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted o cash flow in and out and {2) the balances
left at year-end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental fund statements provide a
detailed short-ferm view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. Because this information does not encompass
the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, we provide additional information at the
bottom of the governmental funds statement, or on the subsequent page, that explain the relationship (or
differences) between them.

s Propriefary funds—Services for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds. Proprietary funds, like the government-wide statements, provide both long-term and short-term
financial information.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS AWHOLE

Net assets. The City’s combined net assets were $95,366,021 at September 30, 2006; increase of $18,077,651 see
Table A-1.



Table A-1
City's Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Increase
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 (Decrease)
Current and Other
assets $ 18,888,129 § 11,845,867 & 12,6814215 § 9,004,494 § 31,402,344 $ 20,850,361 § 10,551,983
Capital assets 61,248,397 55,796,958 62,215,267 60,167,595 123,463,664 115,964,553 7,489,111
Total assels 80,136,526 67,642,825 74,729,482 69,172,089 154,866,008 136,814,914 18,051,084
Long-term liabilities 32,399,366 29,078,663 21,069,954 20,130,043 53,469,320 49,208,706 4,260,614
Other liabilities 3,808,961 6,244,077 1,972,774 4,073,791 5,781,735 10,317,868 {4,536,133)
Total iiabilities 36,208,327 35,322,740 23,042,728 24,203,834 59,251,055 59,626,574 (275,519}
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 28,849,031 286,339,002 38,335,975 38,635,551 67,185,006 64,974,553 2,210,453
Restricted For: 6,763,230 1,598,385 1,950,099 2,942,893 8,713,329 4,941,288 3,772,041
Unrestricted 8,067,004 3,082,688 11,400,682 3,389,811 19,467,686 7,372,499 12,095,187

Tetal net assets $ 43,679,265 § 32,320,085 § 51,686,756 $ 44,668,265 §  95366,021 § 77,288,340 § 18,077,681

Changes in net assets. The City’s total revenues were $55.655,800. A significant portion, 43%, of the City’s revenue comes
from taxes. (See Figure A) 3% comes from grants, while only 42% relates to charges for services, 12% percent from licenses
& permits, fines, interest and other.

Governmental Activities



Revenues
>rogram Revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants
and contributtions
Capital grants
and contributions
senerai Revenues:
Taxes
srants and Contributions
Not Restricted
nvestment Earnings
viscellaneous

Total Revenues

xpenses

seneral Government
Sublic Safety

Streets and Highways
Sanitation

Sulture and Recreaticn
Zeonornic Development
and assistance
nterest on Long-term Debt
Nater and Sewer

l'oll bridge operations
Solf course operations

Total Expenses

ncrease or {Decrease)

in net assets before transfer
lransfers
ncrease in net assets
et Assets, October 1, Restated
*rior Period Adjustment
Jet Assets, September 30,

Table A-2

Change's in City’s Net Assets

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Increase
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 (Decrease)
4,001,335 6,066,964 19,240,239 16,065,232 23,241,574 22,132,196 1,109,378
1,648,387 1,752,819 - - 1,648,397 1,752,819 (104,422}
1,004,051 - - - 1,094,051 - 1,094,051

24,364,142 22,040,301 - - 24 364,142 22,040,301 2,323,841
- 644,591 - - - 644,591 (644,591}

418,245 306,545 - 809,171 419,245 915,716 (496,471}

3,853,254 2,011,895 1,035,137 10,001 4,888,391 2,021,896 2,866,495

35,380,424 32,823,115 20,275,376 16,684,404 55,655,800 49,507,518 5,148,281
9,946,829 5,462,481 - - 9,946,829 5,462,481 4,484,348
14,571,685 14,068,556 - - 14,571,685 14,068,556 503,129
2,232 926 2,276,258 - - 2,232 926 2,276,258 (43,332)
3,227,150 3,519,289 - - 3,227,150 3,519,289 {292,139)
1,043,624 3,641,742 - - 1,043,624 3,641,742 (2,598,118)
1,753,780 1,804,651 - - 1,753,780 1,804,651 (50,871}
1,365,165 1,478,170 - - 1,365,165 1,478,170 (113,005)

- - 7,575,897 6,885,456 7,575,897 6,885,456 690,441
- - 3,156,774 3,830,037 3,156,774 3,830,037 (673,263)

- - 1,053,674 987,571 1,053,674 987,571 66,103
34,141,158 32,251,147 11,786,345 11,703,064 45,927,504 43,954,211 1,973,293
1,239,265 571,968 8,489,031 4,981,340 9,728,296 5,553,308 4,174,988
2,287,584 6,361,480 (2,287,585) (6,361,480) {1) - (1)
3,526,849 6,933,448 6,201,446 {1,380,140) 9,728,295 5,553,308 4,174,987
39,866,821 32,320,085 45,143,054 45,808,830 85,009,875 78,128,915 6,880,980
285,595 613,288 342,255 289,565 627,851 902,853 (275,002)

% 10,750,045

i) )

9%

1%

Figure A

3%

Chargesforservices

HE Cperatinggrants

HTaxes
Minterest
EOther

[ Capital Grant and contributions




Table A-2 presents the cost of each of the City’s largest functions as well as each function's net cost (total cost less
fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid). The net cost reflects what was funded by state revenues
as well as local tax doliars.

e  The cost of all governmental activities this year was $45,927,504,

e However, the amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through properly taxes was only
$10,474,618.

¢ By grants and contributions $2,742,448.

Business-type Activities

Revenues of the City’s business-type activities were $ 20,275,376 and expenses were $13,062,829, which resulted in
a change of net assets of $6,201,4486,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY’S FUNDS

Generat Fund Budgetary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the City revised its budget one time. Even with this adjustment, actuai expenditures
were $510,857 under final budget amounts.

On the other hand, resources available were § 1,384,080 over the final budgeted amount.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets )
At the end of 2006, the City had invested $123,463,663 in a broad range of capital assets, including land, equipment,

Table A-3
City's Capital Assels

Governmerital Activities Business-Type Activities Total Increase

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 (Decrease)
.and $ 4,9092875 $ 30943981 § 2250107 $ 2,250,107 $ 7242982 § 6,194088 § 1,0488%4
onstruction in Progress 2,484,960 7,314,756 8,980,001 6,000,396 $ 11464961 $ 13,324152 § (1,859,191)
3uildings and improvements 31,155,709 29,422 387 28,935,466 28900187 $ 60,091,175 § 58322584 § 1,768,591
nfrastructure 51,669,988 43,287,160 37,371,537 36581430 $ 89041525 $ 79868590 $ 9,172,935
Zquipment 5,937,819 4,196,993 11,417,538 11,053,101 $ 17,355,357 $ 15250,094 $ 2,105,263
Fotal at historical cost 01,248,476 84,221,206 86,704,542 62,544,124 177,953,018 166,765,420 11,187,598
lotal accumulated depreciation (34,992,955}  (32,228,807) (26,739,382)  (24,626,636) (61,732,337) {56,855,443) (4,876,894)
Jet capital assets 56,255,521 51,992,489 59,965,160 57,917,488 116,220,681 109,809,977 6,310,704

lotal net capital assets T 61,248,006 & 55,535,375 3 55,215,237 T 00,167.095 & 323,255,553 % IE. 53,535 3 :.55§,5§5

buildings, and vehicles. (See Table A-4.)

The City's fiscal year 2006 capital budget projects spending $7,358,598, principally for the acquisition of land for the
construction of new Cily's administration offices, business center, library, renovation of existing administrative
facilities, a downtown park renovation, landscaping, a fire department substation, land for park and pay cost of
issuance related thereto.



Long Term Debt

At year-end the City had $53,469,323 in bonds, leases and compensated absences outstanding as shown in Table A-
5. More detailed information about the City’s debt is presented in the notes to the financial statements.

Table A-5
City's Long Term Debt

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Increase
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 {Decrease)
Bond payable $ 22,095000 $ 23,195000  § 20,042,000 $ 21444000 $ 42,137,000 $ 44,639,000 § (2,502,000)
Notes Payables 5,565,280 4,683,694 - - $ 5565280 $ 4,683,694 $ 881,586
Leases Payable 1,565,594 697,538 232,748 86,072 $ 1,798,342 % 783,610 % 1,014,732
Compensated Absences 3,173,494 3,014,116 795,207 707,685 $ 3968701 3 3,721,801 $ 246,900
Total $ 32,399,368 § 31,580,348 $ 21,069,955 § 22,237,757 $ 53,469,323 § 50,106,304 $ (358,782)

Bond Ratings

The City's bonds presently carry “AAA” ratings with underlying ratings as follows: Fitch Investor Series
ALA

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Appraised value used for the 2006-2007-budget preparation is up $174.2 or 11.95% from the prior year.

* The fiscal year 2006-2007 General Fund operating budget was prepared using $1,467,982 as the estimated
unreserved fund balance at September 30, 2006. The actual unreserved fund balance for the General Fund
was $195,401.

CONTACTING THE CITY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the City’s finances and to demonstrate the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you
have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the City's Finance Department at

318 South Cage Blvd. City of Pharr, Texas 78577.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
- SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ASSETS;
Cash and investments
Property taxes
Accounts
Other
Intemnal Balances
Inventories
Prepald items
Deferred charges
Note receivable-revolving loans
Capitalized Interest
Restricted assets:
Cash and time investments
Capital Assets ( net, of accumulated deprecialion)
Land
Buildings
Bridges
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery & Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

LIABILITIES:

Accounts Payable
Other Current Liabifities
Other Accrued Liabilities
Customer Deposits
Deferred Revenue - Other
Noncurrent Liabiities -

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Restricted FFor;

Federal and State Programs

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Economic Develeopment

The accompanying nofes are an integral part of this statement.

10

EXHIBIT A-1

35

8,980,001

Governmental Business-type
Activiies Activities Total

6,785,088 6,566,968 13,352,056
1,725,119 - 1,725,119
4,373,342 3,080,633 7,453,975
658,237 26,572 684,809
3,752,633 (3,752,634) (N
155,277 81,535 236,812
11,470 175,617 187,087
780,108 1,680,050 2,460,156
598,986 - 598,986
47,872 274,868 322,740

— 4,380,606 4,380,606
4,992,877 2,250,107 7,242,984
19,176,348 19,440,711 38,617,059
414,539 - 414,539
4,143,192 772,922 4,918,114
3,597,318 4,668,043 8,265,361
26,439,163 26,103,483 52,542,646
2,484,960 11,464,961

e R

866,009

3,338,045 138,192 3,476,237
37,241 121,730 158,971
280,808 154,875 435,683

- 1,531,031 1,531,031
152,867 26,945 179,812
2,236,885 1,455,511 3,692,396
30,162,481 19,614,443 49,776,924
36,208,327 33,042,727 59,251,064
28,849,031 38,335,975 67,185,006
2,475,979 - 2475979
1,973,541 1,419,482 3,393,023
(1,312,497) 530,617 (781,880)
3,626,207 - 3,626,207
67,004 11,400,682 19,467,686




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT:
Governmental Activities:
City Manager ¥ 2.483,156 § 48228 § 314456 § 531,791
Finance 747,898 30,884 1,706 16,196
Police Department 8,790,401 357,726 19,764 187,596
P.D.-Traffic Safety 1,869,284 33,829 1,869 17,741
Municipal Court 428,007 17,674 §76 9,269
Fire Department 3,912,000 161,542 8,925 84,715
Street Maintenance 2,232,926 85,045 4,699 44,599
Sanitation 3,227,150 3,005,691 6,892 65,421
Municipal Library 976,971 40,343 2,229 21,156
Parks & Recreation 66,653 - - -
Building Maintenance 2,209,070 91,221 5,040 47,838
Community Development 372,549 - 595,026 -
Planning & Code Enforcement 919,324 37,962 2,097 18,908
CcDBG 70,108 - 111,975 -
Non-Deparmental 2,562,264 91,180 572,743 47,821
City Service Center 128,592 - - -
Economic Development 1,753,780 - - -
General Administration 25,861 - - -
Debt service 1,220,846 - - -
Debt service 144,319 - -- -
Total Governmental Activities 34,141,159 4,001,335 1,648,397 1,004,051
Business-type Activities:
Utility 7,575,897 11,200,326 - -
Toll Bridge 3,156,774 7,713,639 — -
Tierra Del Dol Golf Course 1,053,674 350,310 - -~
Total Business-type Aclivities 11,786,345 19,264,275 - -
Total Primary Government $ 45927504 $ 23265610 $ 1,648,397 $ 1,084,051
General Revenues:

Property Taxes

Sales Taxes

Other Taxes

Licenses & permits

intergovernmental

Fines

interest

Other

Transfers

Prior Period Adjustment
Contributed Capital
Net Assets - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
5 (1,688,681) (1,588,881)
(699,112) (699,112)
(8,225,315) (8,225,315)
(1,815,845) (1,815,845}
{(400,088) {400,088)
(3,656,818) (3,656,818)
(2,098,583) (2,098,583)
(149,1486) (149,148)
(913,243) (913,243)
(66,653) (66,653)
{2,064,971) (2,064,971)
222 477 222477
(858,357} (859,357}
41,867 41,887
(1,850,510) (1.850,510)
{128,592) (128,592}
(1,753,780) (1,753,780)
{25,861) (25,861)
(1,220,846) (1,220,846}
(144,319) (144,319)
(27,397,376) (27,397,376)
- 3,624,429 3,624,429
- 4,556,865 4,556,865
- {703,364) (703,364)
- 7,477,930 7.477,930
(27,397,376) 7,477,930 (18,918,446)
10,474,618 - 10,474,618
11,346,050 - 11,346,050
2,543,478 - 2,543,478
898,463 - 898,463
365,175 - 365175
968,071 - 968,071
419,245 - 419,245
1,621,545 1,011,101 2,632,648
2,287,584 (2,287,585) D]
30,924,225 (1,276,484)

28,647,741

'627 851

$

285,685 342,256
- 174,797 174,797
13,679,265 § 51,686,756 § 95,366,021
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Capital
General Projects
Fund Fund

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assels:

Cash and investrments $ 364,756 Y 835,361
FProperty taxes 1,377,280 -
Accounts 4,373,342 -

Cther 476,689 -

Due from other funds 10,477,081 1,324,405

Inventories 151,397 -

Prepaid items 11,470 -

Note receivable-revolving loans 180,398 -

Restricted assets:

Deferred charges - -

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities;

Accounts payable $ 2,601,852 $ -
Accrued expenses 275538 -

Due to other funds 4,536,372 4,750,017
Other 33 -
Payable from restricted assets:

Escrow development liability 220,381 -
Deferred revenue-iaxes 2,153,070 --
Deferred revenue-other (4,743) -

Other liabilities 29,546 --
. Total Liabilities and other credits 9,812,049 4,750,017

Equity and other credits:
Retained earnings:
Fund balances:

Reserved 7,404,863 -
Unreserved 195,401 {2,500,251)
Total equity and other credits 7,600,364 {2,580,251)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIEBIT A-3

Economic Cther Total
Development Governmental Governmenial
Corporation Funds Funds
$ 3,201,987 3 2,492,751 $ 6,894,855
-- 347,839 1,725,119
- - 4,373,342
- 108,598 585,287
535,411 418,270 12,755,167
- - 151,397
— -- 11470
337,502 81,086 598,986
- 1,477 1,477

$ 197,823 $ - 5 2,798,875
- 3,151 278,689
66,601 110,724 9,463,714
- - 33
- - 220,381
- 347,839 2,500,909
- 157,610 162,867
7,695 - 37.241
272,119 619,324 15,453,509
3,802,781 1,644,220 12,851,864
- 1,186,477 (1,208,373)
3,802,781 2,830,697 11,643,581
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EXHIBIT A-4

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Total fund balances - governmental funds balance sheet $ 11,643,591

Amounts reporled for governmental aclivities in the statement of net assets
{("SNA") are different because:

Capital assets used in governmenital activities are nof reported in the funds. 60,397,093
Property taxes receivable unavailable to pay for current period expenditures are deferred in the funds. 2,500,910
The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the SNA. 619,745
Payables for bond principal which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. {23,959,235)
Payables for capital leases which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. (80,695)
Payables for notes which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. {5,188,104)
Payables for compensated absences which are not due in the current period are not reported in the funds. {(3,173,494)
Other long-lerm assets are not available to pay for cumrent-period expenditures and are deferred in the funds. 899,451
Rounding difference 2
Net assets of governmental activities - statement of net assets $ 43,679,264

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Capital
General Projects
Fund Fund
Revenue:
Property Taxes $ 9,143,673 ) -
Sales Taxes 8,509,536 -
Other Taxes 1,864,705 -
Licenses and permits 1,468,291 --
Intergovemmerital {5,033) 508,500
Charges for services 3,463,451 -
Other charges 473,790 -
Fines and forfeitures 968,071 -
Interost 153,306 34,879
Cther 842,945 5,000
Total revenues 26,982,733 546,379
Expenditures:
Current:
General govemment 7,961,281 4,681,674
Public safety 14,870,889 -
Highways and streels 2,542,037 -
Sanifation 3,021,043 -
Culture and recreation 978,971 -
Econorric development and assistance - -
Debt service -- -
Total expenditures 29,372,221 4,681,574
Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures (2,389,488) (4,135,195)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in 2,614,868 457,870
Operating transfers out - (672,542)
Proceeds from Sale of Land - -
Loan proceeds - -
Lease proceeds 1,660,078 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,274,944 (214,6872)
Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses 1,885,456 (4,349,867)
Fund balances/equity, October 1 5,832,125 1,759,616
Prior period adjustment (Note L) {(117.217) --

{See Note M)
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EXHIBIT A-5

Economic Other - Total
Development Governmental Governmental
Corporation Funds Funds

$ - 8 1,317,120 5 10,460,793

2,836,513 - 11,346,049

- 578,773 2,543,478

- -- 1,468,291

- 676,966 1,178,433

- - 3,463,451

349,921 — 823,711

- — 968,071

15,152 215,908 419,245

1,855 1,275,833 2,125,733

3,203,441 4,064,702 34,797,255

- 1,574,395 14,217,250

— 520,432 15,391,321

- -- 2,542,037

- - 3,021,043

- - 976,971

3,120,252 - 3,120,252

677,335 2,125,856 2,803,191

3,797,587 4,220,683 42,072,065
(594,146) {155,981) (7,274,810)

- 971,000 4,043,736
(546,000) (537,610} {1,758,152)

978,881 - 978,881

1,460,000 - 1,460,000

- — 1,660,078

1,892,881 433,390 6,386,543
1,298,735 277409 (888,267)

1,759,454 2,947,341 12,298,576

744,552 {394,063}
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EXHIBIT A-6

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ {888,267)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
("SOA") are different because:

Capital outlays are not reported as expenses in the SOA. 8,462,075
The depreciation of capital assets used in governmental activities is not reported in the funds. (2,679,071}
All proceads from the sale of capital assets are reported in the funds but not in the SOA. (409,534)
Certain property tax revenues are deferred in the funds. This is the change in these amounts this year. 13,821
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the funds but is not an expense in the SOA. 2,484,975
Bond issuance costs and similar items are amortized in the SOA but not in the funds (43,500)
The nef revenue (expense) of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities. (134,195)
Proceeds of notes do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. (1,460,000)
Proceeds of leases do not provide revenue in the SOA, but are reported as current resources in the funds. (1,660.078)
Change in net assets of governmental activities - statement of activities $ 3,686,227

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this stalemenit.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and time deposits
Receivables ( net of allowances for uncollectibles):

Accournts

Other
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid items
Capitalized Interest
Restricted assets:

Cash and time invesiments
Deferred charges
Capital Assets ( net of accumulated depreciation):

Land

Buildings

Improvements other than Buildings

Machinery and Equipment

Infrastructure

Construction in Progress

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

liabilities:
Accounts payable
Compensated absences payable
Due to othier funds
Other liabilites
Accrued expenses payable
Payable from restricted assels:
Current portion of revenue bonds payable
Currenl portion of leases payable
Deferred revenue-other
Revenue bonds payable, net of current portion
Leases and notes payable, net of current portion
Customer meter deposits
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS:

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt
Contributed Capital

Restricted for Debt Service

Restricted for Capital Projects

Restricted for Other Funds

Resiricied Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets

Enferprise
Fund

Utility
Fund

6,835,262
2,958,266

2,656,030
50,269
23,217

1,500,818
16,608

431,120
17,166,018
33,653
3,632,428
14,150,899
7,414,515

56,872,103

137,666
555,902
2,232,306
119,831
88,038

851,000
51,717
104
9,901,000
79,903
1,531,031

15,648,488

31,845,013

1,411,545
530,617

7,435,440

Enterprise
Fund

Toll Bridge
Fund

4,700

122,367
13,781
60,367

150,000

274,868

2,879,788
1,660442

819,645
2,108,215
2,742
685,948
11,835,019
300,170

20,918,052

155,863
154,940

58,591
480,000

32,115
8,810,000

9,691,508

6,390,962

7.937

668,324

4,159,320

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-7

Enterprise
Fund
Tierra Del Total Internal
Sol Golf Enterprise Service
Course Fund Funds Funds
$ (272,994) 3 6,566,968 $ {109,768)
- 3,080,633 -
12,71 28,572 -
70,899 2,787,296 785,231
31,266 81,535 3,880
2,400 175,617 -
- 274,868 -
- 4,380,608 -
- 1,680,050 -
999,342 2,250,107 -
166,478 19,440,711 542,233
736,527 772,922 140,630
349,667 4,668,043 168,440
117,565 26,103,483 -
1,265,318 8,980,001 —
L) 3,479,257 $ 81,269,412 $ 1,530,648
$ - $ 137,666 $ 538,372
83,352 795,207 28,5621
4,152,684 6,539,930 324,052
1,899 121,730 -
7,347 154,876 2,118
- 1,331,000 -
- 51,717 -
{56,274) 26,945 -
- 18,711,000 -
101,127 181,030 17,838
— 1,631,031 -
4,341,135 29,582,132 910,901
- 38,335,975 704,874
2,197,404 2,197,404 -
- 1,416,482 -
- 530,617 -
- 668,324 -
(2,885,828) (2.885,826) 22,485

(173,880) 11,420,780 (107,614)
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND NET ASSETS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Enterprise Enterprise
Fund Fund
Utitity Toll Bridge
Fund Fund
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services $ 11,176,289 $ 7,698,109
Other revenue 24,037 83,403
Total Operating Revenues 11,200,326 7,781,512
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services 2,183,856 938,453
Operation and maintenance 3,925,266 996,678
Depreciation and amortization 1,347,107 704,239
Total Operating Expenses 7,456,229 2,639,370
Operating Income (Loss) 3,744,097 5,142,142
NON-CPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest revenue 391,125 121,835
Other (expenses) {119,668) (517,404}
Other income 2,871 73,466
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) 274,328 (322,103)
Net Income (Loss) before Operating Transfers 4,018,425 4,820,039
TRANSFERS:
Interfund operating transfers in 672,542 72,716
Interfund operating transfers out (162,750) {2,870,093)
Net income 4,528,217 2,022,662
Relained earnings, October 1 36,278,060 9,203,881
Prior period adjustment (Note L} 341,539 --

ibuted Capital 174,797

21



$

Enterprise
Fund

Tierra Del

Sol Golf

Course Fund

350,311
2574

352,885

488,504
486,373
78,797

1,063,674

(700,789)

351,356

351,356
(349,433)

(349,433}

(513,686)
717

Total
Enterprise
Funds

19,224,709
110,014

19,334,723

3,610,813
5,408,317
2,130,143

11,149,273

8,185,450

864,316
(637.072)
76,337

303,581
8,489,031

745,258

(3,032,843)

6,201,446

44 968,255
342,256
174,797
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EXHIBIT A-8

Internal
Service
Funds

833,357

933,357

183,040
853,194
85,078

1,121,312

(187,955)

194

53,566
53,760

(134,195)

(134,195)

753,940




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Employees for Services
Cash Payments to Other Suppliers for Goods and Services
Cash Payments for Grants to Other Organizations
Other Operating Cash Receipts (Payments)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operaling Aclivities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Fihancing Activities:
Proceeds (Payments) from (for) Borrowings
Other Non-Operating Income
Transfers From (To) Primary Govemment
Transfers From (To) Other Funds
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Non-capital Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Principal and Interest Paid
Acquisfifon or Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Contributed Capital
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital & Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
FPurchase of Investment Securities
Cost of Issuance
Interest and Dividends on Investments

Net Cash Provided {Used) for investing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents al Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Change in Assets and Liabilities;
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increass) in Inventories
Decrease (Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Deductions
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Interfund Payables
Increase (Decrease} in Accrued Expenses
Increase (Decrease) in Uneamed Revenue
Prior Period Adjustment

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Enterprise Funds

Utility Tolt Bridge Goif Course
Fund Fund Fund
11,200,326 § 7,658,398 $ 354,128
(2,276,295} (951,055) (466,042)
(1,581,407} (1,146,678) (503,848)
(2,579,647 — 77
4,752,977 5,560,665 (615,042}
- - 101,127
-- 73,486 -
(162,750) (3,059,394) 1,381,189
(162,750) (2,985,928) 1,462,326
- (982,405) --
{2,343,959) (300,170} (1,516,289)
847,339 - -
(1,498,620) (1,282,575} (1,516,289)
{893,423) - -
- (181,395) --
351,602 121,835 351,358
(541,821) (59,560) 351,356
2,551,786 1,232,602 (288,174)
5,784,294 1,651,886 15,180
8,336,080 % 2,884,488 § (272,984)
4,018,426 $ 5,142,142 $ (700,789}
1,339,554 704,329 78,797
(1,726,267) (91,038} 6,518
8,740 - 2,400
12,102 (150,000} (2,400)
(10,591) - {17,473)
- - 15,414
89,385 - 7.048
969,329 - -
52,289 {12,602) --
- (32,076) (5,274)
341,539 - 717
5,094,516 § 5,560,755 § (6815,042)




EXHIBIT A-9

Internal
Service
Totals Funds
% 19,212,853 $ 933,357
(3,693,392) (178,237)
(3,241,931) (852,631)
(2,578,930} -
9,698,600 (97,511)
101,127 17,838
73,466 53,567
{1,830,945) 59,574
{(1,656,352) 130,979
(982,405) -
(4,160,418} -
— (23,532)
847,339 -
(4,295,484) (23,532)
(893,423) -
{181,395) -
824,793 194
{250,025) 194
3,496,214 10,130
7.451,360 (119,898)
$ 10,047,574 § (109,768)
5 8,459,779 § (187,955)
2,122,680 85,078
(1,810,787} -
11,140 --
(140,298) -
(28,084} 563
15,414 --
96,443 -
969,329 -
39,687 4,803
(37,350) -
342,256 -
$ 10,040,229 § {87,511)
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The combined financial statements of Gity Of Pharr, Texas (the "City") have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted in the United States of America. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") is the accepted standard seiting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

1.

Reporting Entity

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all its operations. The City evaluated whether any
other entity should be included in these financial statements. The criteria for including organizations as component
units within the City's reporting entity, as set forth in GASB Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity,"
include whether:

Based

- the organization is legally separate {can sue and be sued in its hame)

- the City holds the corporate powers of the organization

- the City appoints a voting majority of the organization's board

- the City is able to impose its will on the organization

- the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefitlburden on the City

- there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

- the exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial statements

on these criteria, the City has no compenent units. Additionally, the City is not a component unit of any other

reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statement.

Basis of Presentation, Basis of Accounting

a.

Basis of Presentaticn

Governmenl-wide Statements: The statement of net assefs and the statement of activities include the
financial activiies of the overall government. Eliminations been made o minimize thé double-counting of
internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the
City. Governmental activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other
nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the
different business-type activities of the City and for each function of the City's governmental activities. Direct
expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. The City does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of
activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services
offered by the programs and (b) grants and contributions that are resfricted to meeting the cperational or
capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including
all taxes, are presented as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide information about the City's funds, with
separate statements presented for each fund category. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
governmental and enferprise funds, each displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and
enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for senvices, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating reventtes, such as subsidies and investment earnings,
result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

3.

General Fund. This is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City excepl those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The City reports the foliowing major enterprise funds:
In addition, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds: These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services provided
fo parties inside the Cily. These funds facilitate distribution of support costs to the users of support
services on a costreimbursement basis. Because the principal users of the internal services are the
City's governmental activities, this fund type is included in the "Governmental Activities” column of the
government-wide financial statements,

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements: These financial statements are reported using
the economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements
are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded at the time lisbilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.
Nonexchange fransactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving}
equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entilements, and donations. On an accrual basis,
revenue from property faxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from
grants, entilements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have
been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this methed, revenues are
recognized when measurable and avaiable. The City does not consider revenues collected after its year-end
{o be available in the current period. Revenues from local sources consist primarily of property taxes.
Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are recognized under the susceptible-to-accrual
concept. Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally
not measurable until aclually received. Investment earmnings are recorded as earned, since they are both
measurable and avaiable. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which
are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capilal assel acquisitions are
reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under
capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

When the City incurs an expenditure of expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources rhay
be used, it is the City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources.

Under GASB Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other
Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,”" all proprietary funds wil continue to follow
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB"} standards issued on or before November 30, 1989. However,
from that date forward, proprietary funds wil have the option of either 1) choosing not to apply future FASB
standards (including amendments of earlier pronouncements), or 2} continuing to follow new FASB
pronouncements unless they conflict with GASB guidance. The City has chosen to apply future FASB
standards.

Financial Statement Amounts

a.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if they
have a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Property Taxes
Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on receipt
of the tax bil and are delinquent ¥ not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which
imposed. On January 1 of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes,
penalties, and interest ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available when they
become due or past due and receivable within the current period.

Allowances for uncollectble tax receivables within the General and Debt Service Funds are based upon
historical experience in collecting property taxes. Uncollectible personal properly taxes are periodically
reviewed and written off, but the City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific
statutory authority from the Texas Legislature.

c. Inventories and Prepaid tems
Inventories on the balance sheel are slated at weighted average cost. Inventory items are recorded as

expenditures when they are consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

d. Capital Assets
Purchased or constructed capilal assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed assets
are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs
that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asseis’ lives are not capitalized. A capitalization
threshold of $5,000 is used.

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: -

Estimated

Asset Class Useful Lives
Infrastructure ‘ 30
Buildings 7 20
Buiding Improvements 20
Vehicles 2-15
Office Equipment 315
Compuler Equipment 3-15

e. Receivable and Payable Balances ‘
The City believes that sufficient detall of receivable and payable balantes is provided in the financial
statements to avoid the obscuring of significant components by aggregation. Therefore, no disclosure is provided
which disaggregates those balances,

There are no significant receivables which are not scheduled for collection within one year of year end.

g. Interfund Activity
Interfund activity results from foans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers between funds. Loans are

reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to efimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and expenditures or
expenses. Reimbursements ocour when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate benefiting fund and
reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transacticns are freated as transfers. Transfers In
and Transfers Qut are netted and presented as a single "Transfers" line on the government-wide statement of
activities. Similarly, interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single "Internal Balances"
line of the government-wide statement of net assets.

h. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management's estimates.
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B.

Compliance and Accountability

1. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures,” viclalions of finance-
related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along with actions taken to address suich violations:

Violation Action Taken
None reported Not applicable

2. Deficit Fund Balance or Fund Net Assets of Individual Funds
Following are funds having deficit fund balances or fund net assets at year end, if any, along with remarks which address

such deficits:

Deficit
Fund Name Amount Remarks
Capital Projects $ (2,590,251) General Fund has a designated fund balance for deficit. See Note M.
Tierra Del Sol Golf Course (862,402) General Fund has a designated fund balance for deficit.

Deposits and Investments

The City's funds are required to be deposited and invested under the terms of a depository contract. The depository bank
deposits for safekeeping and trust with the City's agent bank approved pledged securities in an amount sufficient to
protect City funds on a day-to-day basis during the period of the contract. The pledge of approved securiies is waived
only to the extent of the depository bank's dollar amount of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurarice.

Cash Deposits:

At September 30, 2006, the camying amount of the City's deposils (cash, cerlificates of deposit, and interest-bearing
savings accounts included in temporary investments) was $17,732,660 and the bank balance was $16,687,223. The
Cily's cash deposils at Seplember 30, 2006 and during the year ended September 30, 2006, were entirely covered by
FDIC insurance or by pledged collateral held by the City's agent bank in the City's name.

In addition, the following is disclosed regarding coverage of combined balances on the date of highest deposit:

a. Depository: First National Bank

b. The market value of securities pledged as of the date of the highest combined balance on deposit was
$23,790,275.
c. The highest combined balances of cash, savings and fime deposit accounts amounted fo $20,610,426 and

occurred during the month of June, 2006.
d. Total amount of FDIC coverage at the time of the largest combined balance was $200,000.
Investments:

The City is required by Government Code Chapter 2256, The Public Funds Investment Act, o adopt, implement, and
publicize an investment policy. That policy must be written; primarly emphasize safety of principal and liquidity,
address investment diversification, yield, and maturity and the quality and capability of invesiment management, and
include a list of the types of authorized investments in which the investing entity's funds may be invested; and the
maximum allowable stated maturity of any individual investment owned by the entity.

The Public Funds Investment Act ("Act™ requires an annual audit of investment practices. Audit procedures in this area
conducted as a pairt of the audit of the general purpose financial statements disclosed that in the areas of investment
practices, management reports and establishment of appropriate policies, the City adhered to the requirements of the
Act, Additionally, investment practices of the City were in accordance with local policies.
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The Act defermines the types of investments which are allowable for the City. These include, with certain restrictions, {1)
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the State of Texas, (2) certificates of deposit, (3) certain
municipal securities, (4) money market savings accounts, (5) repurchase agreements, (8) bankers acceptances, (7) mutual

funds, (8) investment pools, (9) guaranteed investment contracts, and {10) common trust funds.

The City's investmenis at September 30, 2006 are shown below.

Investment or Investment Type Maturity Fair Value
Lone Star National Bank l.ess than one year b

First National Bank Money Market Accounts Less than one year 17,063,334
Total Investments $ 17,732,662

During the vear, the Cily invested in the following type of investment which was not held at year end:

Repurchase Agreements

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks:

GASE Statement No. 40 requires a determination as to whether the City was exposed to the following specific

investment risks at year end and if so, the reporting of certain related disclosures:

a.  Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fuffill its obligations. The ratings of
securities by nationally recognized rating agencies are designed to give an indication of credit risk. At year end, the
City was not significantly exposed to credit risk.

b.  Custodial Credit Risk .
Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk i they are not covered by deposilory insurance and the deposits are
uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities
held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent but not in the City's name.
Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are not registered in the name of
the government, and are held by either the counterparty or the counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the
City's hame.
At year end, the City was not exposed to custodial credit risk.

c.  Concentration of Credit Risk
This risk is the risk of loss  attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a single issuer. Al year end, the
City was not exposed to concentrafion of credit risk.

d. Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that changes in interest rates wil adversely affect the fair value of an investmenl. Al year end, the
City was not exposed to interest rate risk.

e.  Foreign Currency Risk

This is the risk that exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. At year end, the City was
not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Investment Accounting Policy

The City's general policy is fo report money market investments and short-term participating interest-earning investment
conlracts at amortized cost and fo report nonparticipating interest-eaming investment contracts using a cost-based
measure. However, if the fair value of an investment is significantly affected by the impairment of the credit standing of
the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other investments are reporfed at fair value unless a legsl
contract exists which guarantees a higher value. The term "short-term” refers to invesiments which have a remaining term
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the issuer or by other factors, it is reported at fair value. All other invesiments are reported at fair value unless a legal

contract exists which guarantees a higher value, The term "short-term” refers to investments which have a remaining term
of one year or less at time of purchase. The term "nonparticipating” means that the investment's value does not vary with

market interest rate changes. Nonnegotiable ceriificates of deposit are examples of nonparticipating interest-earning
investment contracts.

D.  Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2006, was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,494.339 § - b - $ 2,494,339
Consfruction in progress 7,314,756 5,297,084 10,126,880 2,484,960
Component Unit;
Land 1,449,842 1,458,428 409,534 2,498,536
Total capital assets not being depreciated 11,258,737 6,755,512 10,536,414 7.477.835
Capital assets being depreciated:
infrastructure 43,287,160 8,382,628 - 51,669,988
Buildings 23,613,065 — - 23,613,085
Improvements Other than Buildings 1,857,420 1,673,652 - 3,331,072
Machinery & Equipment 4,138,195 1,740,826 - 5,879,021
Component Unit:
Buildings 1,742,697 - 1,742,697
Improvements Other than Buildings 2,409,205 . 59,670 2,468,875
Machinery & Equipment 58,798 - - 58,798
Tolal capital asseis being depreciated 76,906,540 11,856,976 - 88,763,516
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Infrastructure (23,058,990) - (1,757,296) (24,816,286)
Buildings {5,401,148) - (430,911) (5,832,059)
Improvements Other than Buildings {1,185,257) - {(43.419) (1,228,676)
Machinery & Equipment {1,893,625) - (388,077) (2,281,702)
Compoenent Unit;
Buildings (289,265) - (58,090) (347,355)
improvements Other than Buildings (347,599) - (80,480) (428,079)
Machinery & Equipment (62,921) - (5,877) {58,798)
Tofal accumulated depreciation (32,228,805) - (2,764,150) (34,992,955)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 44,677,735 11,856,976 (2,764,150) 53,770,561
Governmenlal aclivities capital assets, net $ 55,036,472 % 18,612488 § 7,772,264 % 61,248,396
Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 2,250,107 $ - $ - 5 2,250,107
Construction in progress 6,005,396 2,970,605 - 8,980,001
Total capital assets not being depreciated 8,259,503 2,970,605 - 11,230,108
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 36,581,430 790,107 - 37,371,637
Buildings 27,928,300 - 27,928,300
Improvements Other than Buildings 971,897 35,269 - 1,007,166
Machinery & Equipment 11,063,101 364,437 11,417,538
Total capital assets being depreciated 76,534,728 1,189,813 - 77,724,541
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Less accumulated depreciation for:
Infrastructure

Buidings

Improvemenis Other than Buildings
Machinery & equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assels, net $

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows:
General Government 3
Public Safety

Highways and Streets

Sanitation

Culture and Recreation

Economic Developement and Assistance

E.  Interfund Balances and Activity

1.  Due To and From Other Funds

All amounits due are scheduled to be repaid within one year,

Interfund payables and receivables for the period ended September 30, 2008, are as follows:

Fund Receivable Payablé
General Fund:
General Fund : 5 219,251 § 220,928
Major Enterprise Fund-Utility 2,129,111 2,571,265
Internal Service Fund 224,537 661,034
Major Enterprise Fund-Bridge 142,699 715
Major Enterprise Fund-Golf 2,843,906 70,410
Debt Service Fund 51,691 270,759
Capital Projects 4,750,017 57,5624
Trust and Agency Fund 4,191 202,248
PEDC 47,341 535,411
Total General Fund $ 10,412,744 $ 4,590,292
Major Enterprise Fund-Utility:
General Fund 2,603,080 2,159,148
Major Enterprise Fund-Utiity 348 450
Internal Service Fund 47,580 85,103
Trust and Agency Fund 431 (12,396)
Major Enterprise Fund-Golf 4,589 -
Total Major Enterprise Fund-Utilil 2,656,028 2,232,305
Major Enterprise Fund-Bridge:
General Fund 715 142,699
Major Enterprise Fund-Golf 16,268 -
Internal Service Fund 43,384 812
Trust and Agency Fund - 11,429
Total Major Enterprise Fund-Brid 60,367 154,940
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(10,343,570) - (924,484)  (11,268,054)
(7,858,024) —~ (629,565) (8,487,588)
(206,583) - (27,661) (234,244)
(6,218.459) —~ (531,036) (6,749,494)
{24,626,636) - (2,112,746) ~ (26,739,380)
51,608,002 1,189,813 (2,112,746) 50,985,161
60,167,605 $ _ 4,160418 $  (2,112,746)$ 62,215,260
969,055

1,050,054

173,427

206,107

66,653

212,875

2,679,072
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Major Enterprise Fund-Golf:

General Fund 70,410 2,843,908
Major Enterprise Fund-Utility - 4,589
Trust and Agency Fund 489 388
Internal Service Fund - 20,652
Major Enterprise Fund-Bridge - 16,268
Capital Projects - 1,266,880
Total Major Enterprise Fund-Goll 70,899 4,152,683
Internal Service Fund:
General Fund 661,033 224,537
Major Enterprise Fund-Utility 85,103 47,580
Major Enterprise Fund-Bridge 812 43,384
Major Enterprise Fund-Golf 20,652 -
Internal Senvice Fund 7,631 7.631
Trust and Agency Fund - 920
PEDC 10,000 —
Total Internal Service Fund 785,231 324,052
Debt Service Fund:
General Fund 270,759 51,691
Total Debt Service Fund 270,759 51,691
Capital Projects Fund:
General Fund 57,524 4,750,017
Major Enterprise Fund-Golf 1,266,881 —
Total Capilal Projects Fund 1,324,405 4,750,017
Trust & Agency Fund:
General Fund 202,249 4,191
Major Enterprise Fund-Utility (12,396) 433
Internal Service Fund 920 -
Major Enterprise Fund-Bridge 11,428 488
Major Enterprise Fund-Golf 388 -
PEDG 9,260 -
Total Trust & Agency Fund 211,849 5112
PEDC
General Fund 535,411 47,341
Trust and Agency Fund -- 8,260
Internal Service Fund - 10,000
Total PEDC 535,411 66,601
TOTALS $ 16,327,693 § 186,327693

2. Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds at September 30, 2008, consisted of the following:
Transfers to General Fund from:

Toll Bridge Fund 5 2,445,092
Utility Fund 162,750
Debt Service 7,024

Total 3 2,614,866
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Transfers to Utility Fund from:
Capital projects
Total

Transfers to Toll Bridge Fund from:
NonMajor Governmental Funds
Total

Transfers to Debt Service Fund from:
Toll Bridge Fund
PEDC
Total

Transfers to Capital Projects Fund from:

NonMajor Governmental Funds
Total

F.  Shoit-Term Debt Activity

672,542

672,542

72,716

72,718

425,000
548,000

971,000

457,870

457,870

The City accounts for short-term .debts for maintenance purposes through the General Fund. The proceeds from loans are

shown in the financial statements as Other Resources.

G. Long-Term Obligations

The City has entered inlo a continuing disclosure undertaking fo provide Annual Reports and Material Event Nofices
to the State Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This information is required under
SEC Rule 15¢2-12 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operations of the City.

1. Long-Term Obligation Activity

Long-term obligations include debt and other long-term liabilities. Changes in long-term obligations for the year ended

September 30, 2006, are as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within

Governmental activities: Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year
Certificales of obligation $ 7,085,000 $ - % 1,015,000 § 6,070,000 § 1,070,000
General obligation bonds 16,110,000 - 85,000 16,025,000 90,000

Total bonds payable 23,195,000 - 1,100,000 22,095,000 1,160,000
Notes payable 4,683,694 1,460,000 578,414 5,565,280 612,508
Capital leases ** 693,789 1,683,610 811,805 1,565,584 464,377
Compensated absences * 3,014,116 158,378 - 3,173,494 -
Total governmental activities  $ 31,586,699 § 3,302,988 $ 2,490,219 $ 32,399,368 $ 2,236,885
Business-type activities:
Revenue bonds $ 21,444,000 § - $ 1,402,000 § 20,042,000 1,331,000
Capital leases 86,072 231,636 84,960 232,748 124,511
Compensated absences * 707,685 87,522 - 795,207 -
Tofal business-type activities  § 22237757 % 319,158 § 1,486,960 $ 21,069,855 § 1,455,511

** Beginning balance restated by $3,749 for prior period adjustment.

* Other long-term liabilities

The funds typically used to liquidate other long-term liabilities in the past are as follows:
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Liability Activity Type Fund
Compensated absences Governmental ~ General
Compensated absences Business-type Utitity

Long-term debt and obligations at September 30, 2006 are comprised of the following issues:

Governmental Activities:

General Obligation Bonds:

$11,780,000 Series 1998 Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates

of Obligation; due in annual instaliments of $530,000 to $585,00¢ through

August 15, 2008; interest at 4.80% to 4.90% g 1,145,000

$2,165,000 Series 1999 Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue Cetiificales
of Obligation; due in annual installments of $90,000 to $105,000 through
August 15, 2010; interest at 5.53% 405,000

$12,035,000 Series 2001 Combination Tax and Limited Pledge Revenue Certificates
of Obligation; due in annual installments of $385,000 to $605,000 through
Auguslt 15, 2015; interest at 4.50% to 5.256% 4,520,000

$16,110,000 Series 2005B General Obligation Refunding Bonds; due in annual

installments of $85,000 to $1,850,000 through August 15, 2021; interest at 3.00%
to 5.00% 16,025,000

Subfotal-Bonds 22,095,000

Capital Leases:
$32,000 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $608, including interest,
through June 10, 2007, interest at 5.26% $ 5,351

$30,000 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $570, including interest, .
through June 10, 2007; interest at 5.26% 5017

$163,514 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $4,850, including interest,
through April 16, 2006; interest at 4.55% e

$154,300 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $2,895, including interest,

through June 10, 2007, interest at 4.75% 22,750

$290,192 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $6,778, including interest,

through January 24, 2009; interest at 3.07% 88,428

$34,574 lease payable; due in monthly instaliments of $1,028, including interest,

through December 21, 2007; interest at 4.70% 14,941

$279,600 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $3,832, including interest,

through June 10, 2013, interes! rate varies 270,826

$422,952 lease payable; through February 25, 2008; interest rate at 3.7% -

$1,380,478 lease payable; monthly payments range between $14,875 and $30,121;

interest rate varies. 1,140,343

$23,532 lease payabie; due in monthly installments of $683, including interest, 7

through January 15, 2008; interest rate varies. 17,838
Subtotal-Leases ) 1,565,594
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General Obligations Notes Payable

Primary Government:

$2,165,000 note payable to U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development;
due in annual installments of variable amounts, including interest, through August 1,
2011, interest at 6.43%

Component Unit:

$650,000 note payable to Texas Economic Bank; dated July 14, 1985, interest per
annum at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (6.75% at September 30, 2006); payable
in monthly installments of $8,559, including interest; maturity date of July 14, 2010;
coliateralized by first lien on Economic Development sales and use tax receipts.

$200,000 note payable to Wil U. and Dorothy Wallace; dated June 6, 1997, interest
rate of 8.25% per annum; payable in monthly installments of $2,443, including interest;
maturity date of September 1, 2007, collateralized by real estate in Pharr, Texas.

$2,942,996 note payable to Lone Star National Bank; dated August 3, 2001; interest
per annum at 85% of the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (7.00% at September 30,
2006}, payable in monthly installments of $27,700, including interest; maturity date
of August 3, 2016; collateralized by real estate in Pharr, Texas.

$465,000 note payable to Lone Star National Bank; dated April 12, 2002; interest per
annum af the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (6.75% at September 30, 2006); payable
in manthly installments of $3,925, including interest; maturity date of April 12, 2007,
collateralized by real estate in Phar, Texas,

$200,000 note payable fo First National Bank; dated September 16, 2002; interest
per annum at 1% above the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (8.25% at September 30,
2006}, payable in monthly instaliments of $2,332, including inferest; maturity date of
October 9, 2012; collateralized by real estate in Pharr, Texas.

$580,000 nole payable to First National Bank; dated October 9, 2002; interest per
annum at 1% above the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (9.25% at September 30,
2006); payable in monthly installments of $6,828, including interest; maturity date of
October 9, 2012; collateralized by real estate in Pharr, Texas.

$1,460,000 2-year maturity note to First National Bank, dated April 26, 2008; interest
per annum at 1% above Wall Street Journal Prime Rate (9.25% at September 30, 2008);
payable in quaterly installments, maiurity date of May 2008; collateralized by real estate
in Phair, Texas.

Sub Total-Notes Payable

TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Enterprise Funds

Revenue Bonds:

$720,000 Series 1987 Waterworks and Sewer System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds
due in annual installments of $65,000 through September 1, 2007, interest at 0.00%

$3,260,000 Series 1988 Waterworks and Sewer System Junior Lien Revenue Bonds;
due in annual installments of $185,000 to $180,000 through September 1, 2013;
interest at 0.00%

$2,570,000 Series1996 Waterworks and Sewer Lien Revenue Bonds due in

annual installments of $120,000 to $205,000 through September 1, 2016;

interest at 5.2% to 5.75%
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1,205,000

277,877

28,051

1,751,157

335,843

129,227

378,325

1,460,000

5,565,280

$

28,225,874

65,000

1,305,000

1,605,000
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$978,000 Series 1996-A Waterworks and Sewer Systemn Revenue Bonds due

in annual installments of $40,000 to $78,000 through September 30, 2017;

interest at 6.14% to 6.74%

$630,000 Series 1997-B Waterworks and Sewer Systermn Revenue Bonds due

in annual installments of $25,000 to $55,000 through September 1, 2017,

interest at 5.87% to 6.52%.

$4,230,000 Series 1997-C Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds due
in annual instaliments of $210,000 to $400,000 through Seplember 1, 2017;

interest at 3.75% to 4.35%.

$1,651,000 Series 1998 Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds due in

anhual instaliments of $67,000 to $133,000 through September 1, 2018;

interest at 6,00%

$2,160,000 Series 1998A Waterworks and Sewer System Revenue Bonds due in
annual installments of $65.000 to $180,000 through Sepiember 1, 2023,

interest at 6.00%

$9,755,000 Combination Tax and International Bridge Revenue Refunding Bonds,

Series 2005A; due in annual instaliments ranging from $465,000 to $740,000

through August 15, 2022, interest at 3.00% fo 4.5%.

Capital Leases:

$51,771 lease payable; due in monthly installments of $1,534, including interest,

through September 1, 2008; interest at 4.25%

$142,000 lease payable, due in monthly installments of $4,122 including interest,

through December 15, 2008, variable interest.

Subtotal-Bonds

$133,408 lease payable, due in monthly installments ranging from $3,5652
to $3,863, through January 15, 2008, variable interest.

2. Debt Service Requirements

Year Ending September 30,

2007
2008
20098
2010
2011
2012-2018
2017-2021

Subtotal -Leases
Total Enterprise Long-Term Debt
TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Debt service requirements on long-term debt at September 30, 2008, are as follows:
Govermental Activities
Bonhds Leases
Principal Interest Principal Interest
1,160,000 $ 949,253 § 484,377 § 54,756
1,210,000 895,464 451,091 35,807
1,265,000 839,069 273,072 19,931
1,320,000 788,163 213,287 11,202
1,365,000 735,031 86,226 4,385
7,740,000 2,791,175 77,541 2,833
8,035,000 970,014 - -
22,085,000 § 7,968,169 § 1,565,594 § 129,014

Totals

$

36

563,000

440,0C0

3,485,000

1,189,000

2,000,000

9,280,000

20,042,000

33,392

88,228

101,127

232,747
20,274,747

$

49,500,621
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Govermental Activities

Nofes Totals
Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 612,508 § 402,598 § 2,236,885 § 1,408,607
2008 2,082,526 335,395 3,743,617 1,266,666
2009 667,762 183,290 2,205,834 1,042,290
2010 718,529 137,271 2,251,816 936,636
2011 684,451 80,112 2,135,687 829,628
2012-2018 799,494 68,267 8,617,035 2,862,375
2017-2021 - — 8,035,000 970,014
Totals $ 5,665,280 $ 1,216,933 § 29225874 § 9,314,116
Business-type Activities

Year Ending September 30, Principal Interest Total
2007 3 1,455,511 § 491,288 § 1,846,799
2008 1,403,789 460472 1,864,261
2009 1,379,447 429,057 1,808,504
2010 1,414,000 395,989 1,809,989
2011 1,469,000 360,767 1,829,767
2012-2016 7,486,000 1,184,123 8,670,123
2017-2021 4,577,000 270,669 4,847,889
2022-2026 1,090,000 30,687 1,120,687
Totals $ 20,274,747 $ 3,623,062 $§ 23,807,799

4. Continuing Disclosure
The City has entered into a conlinuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and Material Event Notices
to the State Information Depository of Texas, which is the Municipal Advisory Council. This information is required
under SEC Rule 15c2-12 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operations of the City.

H. Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft, damage or destruction of assets, eirors and omissions,
injuries to employees, and nalural disaslers. During fiscal year 2008, the City obtained general liabilty coverage at a
cost that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as
a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool ("TML"). TML is a self-funded pool operating as
a common risk management and insurance program. The CHy pays an annual premium to TML for its above insurance
coverage. The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be self-sustaining through member premiums
and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels, however, each category of
coverage has its own level of reinsurance. The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. There
were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims resulting from
these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

|, Pension Plan

1. Plan Description

The City's pension plan ("Plan") is a non-raditional, joint contributory, defined benefit plan which provides
retirement, disability and death benefiis to Plan members and beneficiaries through its affiliation with Texas
Municipal Retirement System ("TMRS"), an agent multiple-employer public employee retirement system. TMRS
operates under the authority of Texas Government Code, Title 8, Sublile G. The Texas legislature has the
authority to establish or amend benefit provisions and the governing bedy of the City adopts the plan provisions
within the options and constraints established by the legislature. TMRS issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for TMRS. That report may be oblained
by writing to Texas Municipal Retirement System, P.O. Box 149153, Austin, TX 78714-8153 or calling {800)
924-8677. Additional nonauthoritative information is available at the TMRS web site, hitp:/fiwww.tmrs.org.
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2. Funding Policy
Plan members are required to contribute 5% of their annual covered salary. The City is required fo contribute at an
actuarially determined rate; the current rate is 5% of annual covered payroll. The City's contributions to the TMRS
for the years ending September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $1,931,707, $1,871,274 and $1,275,383,
respectively, and were equal to the required contributions for each year.

3.  Annual Pension Cost

The City's annual pension cost of $1,931,707 for the Plan was equal fo the City's required and actual contributions.
Under the state law governing TMRS, the actuary annually determines the City's contribution rate. This rate consists
of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate, both of which are calculated to be a level
percent of payroll from year to year. The normal cost contribution rate finances the currently accruing monetary
credits due fo the City mafching percent, which are the obligation of the City as of an employee's relirement date,

not at the time the employee's contrbutions are made. The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially
determined percent of payoll necessary to satisfy the obligation of the City to each employee at the time his/her
retirement becomes effective. The prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded (overfunded) actuarial
liability (asset) over the remainder of the plan's 25-year amortization period. When the City periodically adopts
updated service credits and increases in annuities in effect, the increased unfunded actuarial liability is to be
amortized over a new 25-year period. Currently, the unfunded actuarial liability is being amortized over the 25-year
period which began January 1997. The unit credit actuarial cost method is used for determining the City's
contribution rate. Since the City needs to know its contribution rate in advance to budget for it, there is a one-year
delay between the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into
effect (i.e., December 31, 1997 valuation is effective for rates beginning January 1989).

Since the TMRS does not value the assets of individual cities, the actuarial assumptions used to set the required
contribution rate of the City are based on TMRS as a whole. For the December 31, 1897 valuation date, an
8% investment rale of relurn was assumed. No assumptions were made for projected salary increases, inflation or cost
of living adjustments.

4. Trend Information for the Plan

Fiscal Annual Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation
September 30, 2004 § 1,275,383 § 100% § -
September 30, 2005 1,871,274 100% -
September 30, 2008 1,931,707 100% -

J. Health Care Coverage

During the year ended September 30, 2006, employees of the City were covered by a health insurance plan (the Plan).
The City paid premiums of $277 per month per employee and dependents to the Plan. Employees, at their option,
authorized payroll withholdings to pay premiums for dependents. All premiums were paid to a licensed insurer. The
Plan was authorized by Article 3.51-2, Texas Insurance Code and was documented by contractual agreement.

The coniract between the Cily and the licensed insurer is renewable July 1, and terms of coverage and premium costs
are included in the contractual provisions.

Latest financial statements for the Blue Cross Blue Shield of Texas are available for the year ended June 30, 2008, have
been filed with the Texas State Board of Insurance, Austin, Texas, and are public records.

K. Commitments and Contingencies

1.  Contingencies
The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor
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agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject o audit and adjustment by the grantor
agencies; therefore, lo the exlent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulafions governing the
grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be
impaired. In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with
the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in the
accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies.

2. Litigation
Various lawsuits are pending against the City involving general liability and civil rights actions. The City attorney
estimates that most of the lawsuits are covered by insurance. With respect o the non-insured claims, it is the City
attorney’s opinion that the potential claims resulting from such litigations would not immaterially affect the financial

position of the City.

..  Increase (Decrease) In Net Assets / Fund Balance

The fund equities as of October 1, 2005 have been restated to reflect corrections made to fund balances.
General Fund

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 5,832,125
Adjustment for prior year's expenditures {117,217}

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 5,714,908

PEDC

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 1,759,494
Adjustment for prior year's revenues 744,552

Fund Balance, Oclober 1 $ 2,504,046

Debt Service Fund i

Fund Balance, Ocfober 1 $ 1,482,201
Adjustment for prior year's expenditures (368,427)

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 1,113,774

Enterprise Fund

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 44,968,255
Adjustment for prior year's expenditures 341,539
Adjustment for prior year's expenditures 77

Fund Balance, October 1 5 45,310,511

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 1,812,792
Adjustment for prior year's revenues 200,371
Adjustment for prior year's expenditures (225,997)

Fund Balance, October 1 $ 1,787,166

Government - Wide
Adjustment for prior year's bond / lease reconciliations $ 52,313

M. Subsequent Events

On November 28,2008, the Cily issued a $7,100,000 Tax Note Series 2006. The purpose of the proceeds from the
sale of the Notes will be used for City-wide street improvementis, aquisition and installation of a fuel pump system
and the purchase of golf-course equipment, and to pay the cost on the issuance of the Note. Some of the cost
were paid during the current year which will be reimbursed by the Note.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

Revenue:
Taxes
Licenses ahd permits
Intergovemmental
Charges for services
Other charges
Fines and forfeitures
Interest
Ofther

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General govermment
Public safety
Highways and streets
Sanitation
Culture and recreation

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Cperaling transfers in
Lease proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances/equity, October 1
Prior period adjustment (Note L}

EXHIBIT B-1

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Criginal Final Actual (Negative)
18,081,342 §$ 19,284,342 5 333,570
816,000 859,000 609,291
- 242,610 {(247.643)
3,825,000 3,485,000 (21,549)
660,500 444 000 29,790
865,000 835,000 133,071
- 45,000 108,306
— 403,701 439,244
25,157,842 25,598,653 1,384,080
8,536,718 8,434,668 473,387
13,537,163 15,001,761 130,872
2,011,421 2,383,471 (158,568)
2,775,000 3,000,000 (21,043)
1,056,425 1,063,178 86,207
27,916,727 29,883,078 510,857
(2,758,885} (4,284.,425) 1,894,937
2,821,311 2,776,451 (161,585)
— 1,723,100 63,022
2,821,311 4,499,551 224,607
62,426 215,126 1,870,330
5,832,125 5,832,125
(117,217) (117,217)
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenue:
Taxes
Other charges
Interest
Othar
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Economic development and assistance
Debt service
Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources {Lses),
Operating transfers out
Proceeds from Sale of Land
Loan proceeds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
(under) expendilures and other financing uses

Fund balances/equity, October 1
Prior period adjustment (Note L)

EXHIBIT B-2

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actusl (Negative)
- - $ 2,835,513
- - 348,921
- - 16,152
— - 1,855
- — 3,203,441
661,708 661,708 (2,458,544)
— - (677,335)
661,708 661,708 (3,135,879)
(661,708) (661,708) 67,562
- - 548,000
— - 978,881
— — {1,460,000)
- — (1,892,881}
(661,708) (661,708) 1,960,443
1,759,494 1,759,494 -
744,552 -
84233
§
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Combining Statements and Budget Comparisons
as Supplementary Information

This supplementary information includes financial statements and scheduies not required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, nor a part of the basic financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.



EXHIBIT C-1

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Total
Nonmajor
Special Debt Governmental
Revenue Service Funds (See
Funds Fund Exhibit A-3)

ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS

Assets:

Cash and investments $ 1,667,915 $ 824,836 $ 2,492,751
Property taxes - 347,839 347,839
Cther 108,598 - 108,598

Due from other funds 147,511 270,759 418,270

Note receivable-revolving loans 81,086 -- 81,086

Restricted assets:

Deferred charges 1,477 - 1,477

450,021

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:
Acerued expenses b 3,151 $ - $ 3,151
Due to other funds 59,033 51,691 110,724
Payable from restricted assets:
Deferred revenue-taxes - 347,839 347,839
Deferred revenue-other 157,610 - 157,610
Total Liabilities and other credits 219,794 399,530 619,324
Equity and other credits:
Fund balances:
Reserved 1,644,220 - 1,644,220
Unreserved 142,573 1,043,904 1,186,477
Total equity and other credits 1,786,793 1,043,904 2,830,697
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Total
Nenmajor
Special Debt Governmental
Revenue Service Funds (See
Funds Fund Exhibit A-5)
Revenue:
Taxes $ 578,773 1,317,122 $ 1,885,885
Intergovernmenital 676,966 - 676,966
Interest 93,367 122,541 215,908
Other 1,275,933 - 1,275,933
Total revenues 2,625,039 1,439,663 4,064,702
Expenditures:
Current:
General govemment 1,674,395 - 1,674,395
Fublic safety 520,432 - 520,432
Debt service - 2,125,856 2,125,856
Total expenditures 2,084,827 2,125,856 4,220,683
Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures 530,212 (686,193) (155,981)
Other financing sources (uses):
Operating transfers in - 971,000 971,000
Operating transfers out (530,586) (7,024) (537,610}
Total other financing sources (uses) (530,586) 063,076 433,390
Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses (374} 277,783 277,409
Fund balancesfequity, October 1 1,812,793 1,134,548 2,947,341
Pri iod adjustment (Note L (25,628) (368,427
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Assets
Sharing
Fund
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash and investments 5 266,348
Other -

Due from other funds -
Note receivable-revolving loans -
Resitricted assets:

Deferred charges -

Community
Development
Fund

100,201
20
4,989
81,086

1.477

LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS

Liabilities:

Accrued expenses $ -

Due fo other funds 27,435
Payable from restricted assets:

Deferred revenue-other -

Tolal Liabifities and other credits 27,435

Equity and other credits:

Fund balances:;
Reserved 238,913
Unreserved -
Total equity and other credits 238,913

3,151
20,255

167,810

181,016

8,757
6,757




Law Hotel/Motel
Enforcement Occupancy Tax
Fund Fund
$ 135,816 3 924,986
— 108,578
- 140,622

- 9,082

- - T go08

- 1,165,004
135,816 --
135,816 1,165,004

Parks and
Maintenance
Fund

$ 240,564 $

2,000

EXHIBIT C-3

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See

Exhibit C-1)

1,667,915
108,598
147,511

81,086

1,477

W6 58T

5 - $ 3,151
2,261 59,033

_ 157,610

2,261 219,794

240,303 1,844,220

- 142,573
240,303 1,786,793




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenue;
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Fublic safety
Total expendifures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures
‘Other financing sources {uses).
Operating transfers out

Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances/equity, October 1
Prior period adjustment (Nofe L)
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Assets
Sharing
Fund

365,175
14,902

380,077

520,374

520,374

(140,297)

(140,297)

379,210

Community
Development
Fund

4,781
1,275,888

1,080,568

1,280,869

1,280,669

6,757



Law
Enforcement
Fund

58
58

25,578

HotelMotel
Occupancy Tax
Fund

578,773

40,086

618,859

285,104

285,104

333,755

(72,716)

(72,716)

261,039

703,594
200,371
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Parks and
Maintenance
Fund

311,791
7,962
45

319,798

8,622
8,622

311,176

(457,870)

(457 870)

(146,694)

612,994
(225,997)

EXHIBIT C4

Total
Nonmajor
Special
Revenue
Funds (See
Exhibit C-2)

578,773
676,966
93,367
1,275,933

2,625,039

1,674,395
520,432

2,004,827

530,212

(530,586)

(530,586)

(374)

1,812,793
(25,526)
/86,793




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Revenue:
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General govemment
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses).
Operating transfers in
Operating transfers out
Total other financing sources (Uses)

Excess of revenues and other financing sources over
{under) expenditures and other financing uses

‘Fund bal

EXHIBIT C-5

Variance with

5860846

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
— - $ 506,500
56,000 56,000 (21,121)
6,251,500 6,251,500 (6,246,500)
6,307,500 6,307,500 (5,761,121}
2,706,270 2,708,270 {1,975,304)
2,706,270 2,706,270 (1,975,304)
3,801,230 3,601,230 (7,736,425)
500,000 500,000 {42,130)
- - 672,542
500,000 500,000 714,672
4,101,230 4,101,230 (8,451,097)
1,759,616 1,759,616 -
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EXHIBIT C-6

CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Total
Internal
City Worker's Service
Garage Compensation FFunds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit A-7)
ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and fime deposils $ (103,787) % (5981) § (109,768)
Receivables { net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Due from other funds 176,062 609,169 785,231
Inventories 3,880 - 3,880
Restricted assets:
Capital Assets ( net of accumulated depreciation):
Buildings 542,233 - 542 233
Improvements other than Buildings 140,630 - 140,630
Machinery and Equiprment 168,440 - 168,440
Total Assets 3 927,458 3 603,188 $ 1,530,646
LIABILITIES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 1,053 $ 537,319 $ 538,372
Compensated absences payable 28,521 - 28,521
Due fo other funds 280,668 43,384 324,052
Accrued expenses payable 2,118 - 2,118
Payable from restricled assets:
Leases and notes payable, net of current poriion 17,838 — 17,838
Total Liabifities 330,198 ‘580,703 910,901
NET ASSETS;
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt 704,874 - 704,874
Restricted Net Assets - 22,485 22,485
Unrestricted Net Assets (107,614) _ - {107,614)
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services 5

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personal services
Operation and maintenance
Depreciation and amortization
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest reventie
Other income
Total Non-operafing Revenues (Expenses)
Net Income {Loss) before Operating Transfers

TRANSFERS:
Interfund operating transfers in
Infarfund operating transfers out

Net income

Retained earnings, Oclober 1

Total
Internal
City Worker's Service
Garage Compensation Funds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit A-8)
833,357 - $ 933,357
933,357 — 933,357
183,040 - 183,040
794,025 59,169 853,194
85,078 — 85,078
1,062,143 59,169 1,121,312
(128,786) (59,169) {(187,955)
194 - 194
- 53,566 53,566
194 53,566 53,760
{128,592) (5,6803) {134,195)
{128,592) {5,603} {134,195)
725,852 28,088 753,940
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ALL INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Cusforners
Cash Payments to Employees
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Setvices
Cash Payments for Grants to Other Organizations
Other Operating Cash Receipts {(Payments)

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Non-capital Financing Activities:
Proceeds (Payments) from (for) Borrowings
Other Non-Operating Income
Transfers From (To) Primary Govermment
Transfers From (To) Other Funds
Net Cash Provided {Used) by Non-capital
Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from fssuance of Long-term Debt
Principal and Interest Paid
Acquisition or Construction of Capital Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets
Contributed Capital
Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capifal and
Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of Investment Securities
interest and Dividends on Investmenis

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Investing Aclivilies

Net Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss}

Adjustments lo Reconcile Operating Income to Net

Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation

Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (Increase) in Receivables
Decrease (Increase) in Inventories
Increase {Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Deductions
Increase {(Decrease) in Accrued Wages Payable
Increase (Decrease) in Accrued Expenses
Prior Period Adjustment

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

EXHIBIT C-8

Total
Internal
City Worker's Service
Garage Compensation Funds (See
Fund Fund Exhibit A-9)

b 933,357 § - $ 933,357
{178,237} - (178,237)
{793,462) {59,169) (852,631)

(38,342) (569,189) (97,511)
17,838 - 17,838
- 53,566 53,566
59,574 - 59,574
77,412 53,566 130,978
(23,532) - (23,532)
(23,532) - (23,632)
184 - 184
184 - 194
15,732 (5,8603) 10,129
(119,520) (378) {115,898)
$ (103,788) $ {5,981) % {108,769)
$ (128,788) § (59,169) $ {187,955)
85,078 - 85,078
563 - 563
4,803 - 4,803
$ (38,342) § (59,169) $ (97,511)
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Other Supplementary Information

This section includes financial information and disclosureés not required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board and not considered a part of the basic financial statements. it may, howeveér, include information which is
required by other entities.



OJ'C'GZ’ W 90!22&/62

Gerlﬁecf Fhblic Hecountfant

110 North GCage ® Phare, Jexas 78577
Tel (o56) 787-0909 ® Fax: (938) 787-3067

Emart orgliOn @ao[com
Independent Auditor's Report
tr i jal R
i i i ment
v
Members of the City Council

City Of Pharr, Texas
201 West Park Avenue
Pharr, Texas 78577

Members of the Members of the City Council:

| have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City Of Pharr, Texas as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the City Of Pharr, Texas's basic financial statements and
have issued my report thereon dated May 1, 2007. | conducted my audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

i LC L Over Fi il R . ‘
in planning and performing my audit, | considered City Of Pharr, Texas's internal control over financial

reporting in order to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinions on the
financial statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reperting. However, |
noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that | consider to
be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to my attention relating to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in my judgment,

could adversely affect City Of Pharr, Texas's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial data
consistent with the assertions of management in the basic financial statements. Reportable conditions are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 06-1,06-2,06-3,06-4,06-5,06-6
086-7, 06-8, 06-9, 06-11, 06-13, 06-14, and 06-15.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or
fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and
not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions. My consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all
matters in the internal conirol that might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily
disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the
reportable conditions described above, | considered items 06-1, 06-2, 06-3, 06-4, 60-5, 06-9, 06-10, 06-11,
(6-13 and 06-15 tc be material weaknesses.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City Of Pharr, Texas's financial statements are
free of material misstatement, | performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, | do not express such an opinion. The results
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of my tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards which are described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as items 06-12. | also noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance
that | have reported to management of City Of Pharr, Texas in a separate letter dated May 1, 2007.

| also noted other matters that | reported to management of City Of Pharr, Texas in a separate letter dated
May 1, 2007.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, the
Members of the City Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Oscar R. Gonzalez CPA

May 1, 2007
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Certified Public Accountant

110 North Cage ® Phars, Jexas 78577
Tel- (956) 7679909 * Fax: (956) 787-3067
Emarl orglion @ao[com
Independent Auditor's Report

0/ , With OMB Circular A-133

Members of the City Council
City Of Pharr, Texas

201 West Park Avenue
Pharr, Texas 78577

Members of the Members of the City Council:

Compliance

| have audited the compliance of City Of Pharr, Texas with the types of compliance requirements described in
the U. §. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that are
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2006. City Of Pharr,
Texas's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of City
Of Phamr, Texas's management. My responsibility is to express an opinion on City Of Phair, Texas's
compliance based on my audit.

| conducted my audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that | plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City Of Pharr,
Texas's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as | considered
necessary in the circumstances. | believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion. My audit
does not provide a legal determination on City Of Pharr, Texas's compliance with thase requirements.

In my opinion, City Of Pharr, Texas complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2006.

Internal Control Qver Compliance

The management of City Of Phair, Texas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing my audit, | considered City Of Pharr, Texas's internal contro} over
compliance with requirements that coutd have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order
to determine my auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing my opinion on compliance and to test and
report on the internal control over compliance in accerdance with OMB Circular A-133.

t noted certain matters involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that | consider to be
reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve matters caming to my attention relating to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in my judgment, couid
adversely affect City Of Pharr, Texas's ability fo administer a major federal program in accordance with the
applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. Reportable conditions are described in
the accompanying schedute of findings and questioned costs as items 06-1, 06-2, 06-3, 06-4, 60-5, and 06-6.
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A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or mare of the internal
control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with the applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. My consideration of the internal
control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be
reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also
considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, | consider
items 06-1, 06-2, 06-3, 06-4, 60-5, and 06-9. to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, others within the organization, the

Members of the City Council, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Coecr 2 i

Oscar R. Gonzalez CPA

May 1, 2007
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

I. Summary of Auditor's Results

1z

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
Reportable condition(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None Reported
Noncompliance material to financial
statements noted? ____ Yes X No
2. Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? Yes ~ X No
Reportable condition(s) identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? X Yes None Reported
Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs: Unqualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a)
of Circular A-1337? Yes X No
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.218 Community Development Block Grant
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
type A and type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X No
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Finding and Questioned Costs Description
06-1 Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City have a written
Accounting Policies accounting policies and procedures manual for the proper
and Procedures Manual — Primary handling and recording of financial transactions by the Finance

Government Department.

Statement of Condition: The City does not have a written policies
and procedures manual.

Cause of Condition: The City has not given priority to
establishing such a document.

Effect of Condition: There is no proper guidance for applicable
City personnel to follow in accounting for financial transactions.

Recommendation: The City should hire a consultant to help it
establish a written policies and procedures manual for its Finance
Department. Once the manual is approved by the Board, the City
should adhere to such policies and procedures.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has prepared a preliminary
draft of a written accounting policies and procedures manual,
which is scheduled to be presented for approval in fiscal year
2007. In addition staff uses the GFOA Blue Book as reference
regarding accounting matters.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

06-2 A. Purchasing Manual

Purchasing — Primary Government Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City have a written
purchasing manual to ensure compliance with state, federal, and
legal requirements.

Statement of Condition: The City currently has a manual that is
outdated.

Cause of Condition: The City has not given priority to updating or
renewing its purchasing manual.

Effect of Condition: The City does not have the proper guidance
to ensure compliance with state, federal, and legal requirements in
the procurement process.

Recommendation: The City should hire a consultant to help it
establish a current written purchasing manual. The manual should
then be reviewed by legal counsel. Once it is approved by legal
counsel, the Board should approve it. The City should adhere to
the policies and procedures in its purchasing manual.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has prepared a preliminary
draft of purchasing policies and procedures which is modeled after
the State Comptrollers document and is scheduled to be
presented for approval in 2007. In addition, staff follows state
statutes regarding procurement.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Finding and Questioned Costs Description
06-2 B. Purchase Orders
Purchasing — Primary Government Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City properly
(Cont.) prepare purchase orders for all applicable purchases of goods or

services before the purchases are made.
Statement of Condition: Currently, the City prepares purchase
orders for certain purchases of goods. It does not prepare
purchase orders for purchases of services, construction contracts,
or commitments via inter-local agreements. In many instances, the
purchase order (P.O.) is prepared after the fact (i.e., the P.O. is
dated the same as or after the date of the invoice).

Cause of Condition: The City does not have a current purchasing
manual, which provides proper guidance to applicable personnel.
Effect of Condition: The City made some purchases of goods
and services that were not properly authorized. Also, the City does
not readily know what all of its commitments are on any given day.
Recommendation: The City should establish and approve a
current written purchasing manual. The purchasing manual should
require that the City properly prepare purchase orders for all
applicable purchases of goods or services, including construction
contract and applicable inter-local agreements, before the
purchases are made. The City should adhere to the policies and
procedures in its purchasing manual.

Auditee’s Response: The preliminary draft of purchasing policies
and procedures is scheduled for approval in fiscal year 2007 and
is modeled after the State Comptroller’s document. It will address
purchase orders and related transactions. Commitments are
being updated bimonthly rather than monthly.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Finding and Questioned Costs Description
06-3 A. Training, Supervision, and Review Criteria: Good internal
Finance Department — Primary controls require that the City properly train and supervise
Government employees in the performance of their assigned functions.
Someone in a supervisory capacity is also required to review the
employee’s work.

Statement of Condition: Based on the results of our audit, certain
staff under the Finance Director were not properly trained and
supervised to perform their assigned functions. There was no
documentation to support that the employee’s work was reviewed.
Cause of Condition: The City is unaware of the required duties
and responsibilities of the Finance Director’s position.

Effect of Condition: After year-end, the Finance Department
made too many post-closing adjustments to reclassify transactions
and correct errors. This should have been done prior to the
Finance Department closing its general ledgers.
Recommendation: The City should establish and approve a job
description for the position of Finance Director. The City should
evaluate whether the current Finance Director meets the
qualifications of this position. The City should also ensure that
most, if not all, adjustments are posted to the general ledgers
before the general ledgers are closed and provided to the auditor.
Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has created a Human |
Resources Division apart from the Finance Department. This has
allowed the Finance Department more time to regularly review
employee’s work, conduct more frequent staff meetings, and to
more closely monitor the status of work projects. This has
enabled improved monitoring of current year audit preparations
and year end closing procedures.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

B. Professional Development

Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City have a
program in place for the professional development of its
accounting staff.

Statement of Condition: The City does not have a formal
program in place for the professional development of its
accounting staff.

Cause of Condition: The City has not give priority to establishing
a program for the professional development of its accounting staff.
Effect of Condition: The Finance Director and certain members
of the accounting staff do not have an adequate awareness and
understanding of current developments on technical literature to
properly perform their assigned functions.

Recommendation: The City should establish and approve a |
policy that requires all professional personnel of the Finance
Department to obtain forty hours of continuing professional
education per year; that all professional staff will maintain an
adequate awareness and understanding of current developments
in technical literature; and all professional staff will assist in the
training and development of staff under their supervision.
Auditee’s Response: The Finance Director will ensure that all
professional personnel of the Finance Department obtain the
required number of CPE hours. Staff development and training
has been given higher priority.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Findings and Questioned Costs Description
06-4 A. Capitalization Policies and Procedures
Fixed Assets — Primary Government Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City have written

policies and procedures for the capitalization of fixed assets
purchased, constructed, or received as donations and also for the
depreciation of depreciable assets.

Statement of Condition: The City does not have written policies
and procedures for the proper capitalization of fixed assets
purchased, constructed, or received as donations, and also for the
depreciation of depreciable assets.

Cause of Condition: The City’s Finance Department has not
given priority to the establishment of proper policies and
procedures for the proper capitalization and depreciation of fixed
assets.

Effect of Condition: The City did not properly account for its fixed
assets as of and for the year ended September 30, 2008.
Recommendation: The City should establish and approve its
policies and procedures for the proper capitalization and
depreciation of fixed assets. The policies and procedures should
also address the requirements of OMB Circular A-102.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee does have a capitalization
policy and has prepared a preliminary draft of a written accounting
policies and procedures manual, which will be presented for
approval in fiscal year 2007.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

B. Capitalization of Fixed Assets

Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City capitalize
fixed assets, which were purchased, constructed, or received as
donations, on a timely basis.

Statement of Condition: The City did not capitalize fixed assets
purchased or constructed during the year on a timely basis.

Cause of Condition: The City’'s Finance Department has not
given priority to the proper capitalization of fixed assets.

Effect of Condition: The City did not readily know what fixed
assets were purchased or constructed during the year.
Recommendation: The City should hire an accountant or fixed
assets clerk to properly account for and record fixed assets
purchased or constructed during the year on a timely basis.
Auditee’s Response: The City is using the new fixed asset
software and will comply with the new proposed policies and
procedures for the proper capitalization of fixed assets on a timely
basis.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Findings and Questioned Costs Description
06-4 C. Subsidiary Ledger
Fixed Assets — Primary Government, Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City maintain a
(Cont.) subsidiary ledger for fixed assets that reflect the fixed assets that

the City owns and has on hand.

tatement of Condition: The City’s fixed assets subsidiary ledger
is incomplete and has not been adjusted to reflect the fixed assets
that the City owns and has on hand.

Cause of Condition: The City’s Finance Department has not
given priority to the proper maintenance of its fixed assets
subsidiary ledger.

Effect of Condition: The City did not properly account for its fixed
assets during the year ended September 30, 2006.
Recommendation: The City should perform a complete physical
inventory of its fixed assets. The City should update is fixed assets
subsidiary ledger based on the physical inventory of fixed assets.
Auditee’s Response: The City will perform an updated complete
physical inventory of its fixed assets and adjust its fixed assets
subsidiary ledger based on the physical inventory. One firm has
been awarded inventory documentation to comply with GASB 34.
Questioned Cost: $-0-

D. Depreciation Schedules

Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City maintain
depreciation schedules for all of its depreciable fixed assets.
Statement of Condition: The City does not have formal
depreciation schedules for its depreciable fixed assets. It is
currently using schedules that were provided to the City by the
company that helped the City implement GASB Statement No. 34 |
three years ago.

Cause of Condition: The City's Finance Department has not
given priority to establishing proper depreciation schedules for the
City's depreciable fixed assets.

Effect of Condition: The City did not properly account for
depreciation expense in fiscal year 2006.

Recommendation: The City should use the computer software
program, which is included in the City’s new accounting software,
for the depreciation of its fixed assets.

Auditee’s Response: The City has awarded GASB 34 inventory
compliance services and is using the new fixed assets accounting
software during fiscal year 2007 which will address depreciation
and other fixed asset issues.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

61




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Finding and Questioned Costs Description
06-5 A. Preparation of Bank Reconciliations
Bank Reconciliations — Primary Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City prepare
Government monthly bank reconciliations for all of its bank accounts on a timely

basis. The City is also required to reconcile the book balances per
bank reconciliations to book balances per general ledgers. If
needed, the City is required to adjust the general ledger in order
for the balance to agree with book balances per bank |
reconciliations.

Statement of Condition: Although the City prepared monthly
bank reconciliations for all of its bank accounts, it did not prepare
them on a timely basis. Also, it did not reconcile the book balances
per bank reconciliations to book balances per general ledgers on a
timely basis. Many of the fiscal year 2006 monthly bank
reconciliations for various bank accounts were corrected after
year's end.

Cause of Condition: Applicable City staff was not properly trained
to perform this function.

Effect of Condition: Many bank balances per general ledgers
were not correct during the year.

Recommendation: The City should ensure that all applicable
personnel are properly trained to perform the bank reconciliation
function. Bank reconciliations for all bank accounts should be
prepared monthly on a timely basis. The preparer should initial
and date the bank reconciliations.

Auditee’s Response: Supervisory personnel train subordinate
staff and review & document bank reconciliations on a regular
basis to ensure timely reconciliation of corresponding General
Ledger accounts.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

B. Review of Bank Reconciliations

Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City have
someone in a supervisory capacity review the monthly bank
reconciliations prepared by someone else.

Statement of Condition: There was no documentation to
substantiate that supervisory reviews of bank reconciliations were
performed.

Cause of Condition: Applicable City Staff was not properly
trained to perform this function.

Effect of Condition: Many bank balances per general ledgers
were not correct during the year.

Recommendation:_ Monthly bank reconciliations should be
reviewed on a timely basis by someone in a supervisory capacity.
The reviewer should document his/her review by initialing and
dating the bank reconciliations.

Auditee’s Response: Supervisory personnel review & document
bank reconciliations on a regular basis to ensure timely
reconciliation of corresponding General Ledger accounts.
Questioned Cost: $-0-




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Finding and Questioned Co Description
06-6 Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City ascertain
Collateralization of Deposits whether the City’s deposits and investments are adequately
and Investments — Primary collateralized as required by state statutes.
Government Statement of Condition: There was no documentation to

substantiate the internal reviews of collateralization were
performed timely as the year progressed to ensure that the
depository institutions had maintained adequate collateralization
on the City’s deposits and investments as of and for the year
ended September 30, 2006. Documentation provided was
prepared after year’s end.

Cause of Condition: The City’s Finance Department has not
given priority to the proper review of collateralization on the City’s
deposits and investments.

Effect of Condition: The City did not readily know whether all
applicable  depository  institutions ~ maintained  adequate
collateralization on the City’'s deposits and investments during
fiscal year 2006.

Recommendation: Pledged securities reports from all banks
should be requested on a monthly basis. These reports should be
internally reviewed and such reviews should be properly
documented. The City should ensure the depository banks
promptly provide to the City copies of safekeeping or trust receipts
covering all such collateral held for the banks, including substitute
collateral.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee monitors and reviews
collateralization of deposits on a regular monthly basis. Such
reviews continue to be properly documented. Also, the City will
ensure that depository banks provide to the City monthly copies of
safekeeping or trust receipts covering all collateral held for the
bank, including substitute collateral.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Finding and Questioned Costs Description
06-7 Criteria: Good internal controls require that the City conduct
Golf Course Inventories — Primary periodic physical counts of inventories of goods for sale at its Golf
Government Course Pro Shop. The City is also required to reconcile each

inventory taken with the preceding inventory taking into
consideration items purchased, items returned to vendors, and
items sold.

Statement of Condition: The City only conducts annual counts
of inventories at the Pro Shop. No reconciliation is performed
between the most recent inventory and the preceding inventory.

Cause of Condition: The City has not given priority to performing
periodic counts of inventories and reconciling such inventories t0
previous inventories.

Effect of Condition: The City has no way of knowing whether
theft of inventory items has occurred.

Recommendation: The Pro Shop personnel should conduct
physical counts of inventory, at least quarterly (if not monthly).
Personnel should also reconcile each inventory to the preceding
inventory. Any significant variance should be investigated and
resolved in a timely manner.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee is meeting with the current
software provider and working on upgrading the current version to
the newest version available, in fiscal year 2007. The upgraded
software will better address inventory control.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 o

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal

Awards Findings and Questioned Costs Description
06-8 A. Accounting System
Golf Course Revenues - Primary
Government Criteria: Good Internal control requires that the City have an

accounting system with cash register and software that will provide
accurate, properly controlled, and protected information.

Statement of Condition: The current Golf Course accounting
system is ineffective and unreliable.

Cause of Condition: The City as not given priority to the
installation of a good accounting system at the Golf Course.

Effect of Condition: Without proper review of all applicable
documentation attached to the daily collection reports submitted to
the Finance Departments, actual cash deposited in the bank could
be less than the amount collected and not be detected.

Recommendation: The City should replace the current system with
cash registers and software that will provide more accurate, properly
controlled, and protected information. The accounting system
should be networked and compatible with the City’'s Accounting
system. Until the system is replaced, the Finance Department
should review submitted daily report information for negative sale
transactions and unapproved voided transactions.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee is meeting with the current
software provider and working on upgrading the current version to
the newest version available, in fiscal year 2007.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

B. Policies and Procedures Manual

Criteria: Good internal Controls require that the City have a written
accounting policies and procedures manual for the proper handling
and recording of financial transactions of its Golf Course Operations.

Statement of Condition The City does not have written accounting |
policies and procedures manuals for its Golf Course Operations.

Cause of Condition: The City has not given priority to establishing
such a document.

Effect of Condition: There was no proper guidance for applicable
personnel to follow in accounting for financial transactions.

Recommendation: The City should include written policies and
procedures related to the Golf Course in its City-wide written
accounting policies and procedures manual.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has prepared a preliminary draft
of a written accounting policies and procedures manual, which will
be presented for approval in fiscal year 2007. This manual will
address updated accounting for Golf Course operations

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal Awards
Findings and Questioned Costs

Description

06-9
Process to correct prior audit
Findings — Primary Government

06-10
Municipal Court — Primary Government

Criteria: Good Internal controls require that the City have a
process in place to address and correct prior year’s audit findings.
Statement of Condition: The City does not have a process in
place to address and correct prior year’s audit findings

Cause of Condition: The Finance Director did not give priority to
the addressing and correcting prior year’s audit findings.

Effect of Condition: Since no correcting action has been
implemented, most of prior's year findings have been noted as
current year’s findings.

Recommendation: The City should ensure there is a process in
place to correct all audit findings.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee concurs.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

A. Subsidiary Ledger

Criteria: _Good Internal controls require that the City have a
subsidiary ledger for citation tickets for which warrants have been
issued.

Statement of Condition: Although the City currently maintains
warrant reports for the above noted tickets, some of the
information is maintained in the computer system and some is not.
Also, nobody has verified that there is warrant for each citation
ticket listed in the warrant report.

Cause of Condition: The City has not given priority to the
installation of a good accounting system for the Municipal Court.
Effect of Condition: The balance of warrant receivable during
the year and as of year end might not be correct.
Recommendation: The City should replace the current system
with a new one that is compatible with City’s accounting system.
The City should establish a subsidiary ledger for such tickets after
it reconciles the information on the warrant reports with the actual
warrants on file.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has purchased a new system
that is compatible with the City’s accounting system and has also
contracted for collection services regarding outstanding tickets.
Questioned Cost: $-0-

B. Policies and Procedures Manual

Criteria:  Good internal controls require that the City have an
accounting policies and procedures manual for the proper
handling and recording of financial transactions of its Municipal
Court operations.

Statement of Condition: The City does not have accounting policie
and procedures manual for its municipal operations.

Cause of Condition: The City was unaware of the need to ha
such a document.

Effect of Condition: There was no proper guidance for applicable
personnel to follow in accounting for financial transactions.
Recommendation: The City should include policies and procedure
related to the Municipal Court in its City-wide accounting policies an
procedures manual.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has prepared a preliminary
draft of accounting policies and procedures which will address
Municipal Court operations.Questioned Cost: $-0-
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Findings and Questioned Costs Description
06-10 C. Training

Municipal Court - Primary
Government (Cont.)

Criteria:  Good internal controls require that the City properly
train the clerks in the performance of their assigned functions.
Statement of Condition: The individual, who is responsible for
recording daily collections and preparing applicable reports, was
unfamiliar with the types of reports that can be generated by the
software currently being used by the Municipal court. .

Cause of Condition: The City has not given priority to the proper
training of all clerks at the Municipal Court.

Effect of Condition: Since the individual mentioned above was
unfamiliar with the accounting software, she had to summarize
certain data manually instead of utilizing the computer. The
summarized data might not been correct.

Recommendation: All applicable Municipal Court clerks should
be properly trained to use the new computers and new accounting
software.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has made training mandatory
for all indivuals utilizing the new Municipal Court software.
Questioned Cost: $-0-

06-11
Grants — Primary Government

A. Administration

Criteria:  Good internal controls require that the City properly
record financial transactions related to federal and state grants in
the general ledger on a timely basis.

Statement of Condition: During fiscal year 2006, the City did not
properly record financial transactions related to these grants in the
general ledger on a timely basis.

Cause of Condition: The Finance Department has not
designated one of its accountants to specifically account for all of
the City's federal and state grants. There was a lack of
communication between the City departments that were awarded
federal and state grants and the Finance Department. In some
cases, the Finance Department was not provided withal of the
necessary documentation related to these grants to properly
account for these grants on a timely basis.

Effect of Condition: The City did not properly account for all
grant-related financial transactions in the general ledger on a
timely basis. Also, the City did not know whether all applicable
financial status reports were filed correctly and timely with
applicable grantors.

Recommendation: The Finance Department should designate
one of its accountants to specifically account for all grants. There
should be better communication between the departments that
received grants and the accountant assigned to grants. These
departments should also provide copies of grant awards,
subsequent amendments, and financial status reports to be filed
with grantors to the accountant on a timely basis.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has assigned an accountant
as the main contact for all grants regarding accounting for these
programs.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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06-11
Grants — Primary Government (Cont.)

B. Grant Funds

Criteria: _ Good internal controls require that the City establish
and maintain those funds that are required by law and sound
administration to account for grants.

Statement of Condition: Except for the CDBG and the Technical
Assistance Agreements Grants, all other grants that the City
administered in fiscal year 2006 were accounted for in the City’s
General Fund.

Cause of Condition: The Finance Department has not given
priority to establishing and maintaining those grant funds that are
required by sound administration to account for grants.

Effect of Condition: The City did not properly record financial
transactions related to those grants in the general ledger on a
timely basis.

Recommendation: Except for those grants that are required to
be accounted in an enterprise funds(s), the City should account for
all other grants in special revenue funds.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has made accounting of
grants a priority and segregated grants in special revenue funds.
Questioned Cost: $-0-

06-12
Public Investment Act - Primary
Government - Noncompliance

A. Investment Policy

Criteria: _ Chapter 2256.005 of the Texas Government Code
requires that the City’ invest its funds under written investment
policies approved by the City Commission and to review the City
investment policy annually.

Statement of Condition: The City has not updated its written
investment policy that addresses the requirements of the Public
Investments Act. (The Act.). Although the City reviewed and made
a minor change to its investment policy in December 2006, it did
not make the required changes to satisfy all requirements of the
Act.

Cause of Condition: The City did not correctly review its public
investment policy.

Effect of Condition: The City did not comply with State law
regarding this matter.

Recommendation: The City should immediately review and
approve an investment policy that addresses all requirements of
the Act.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has reviewed and revised the
Investment Policy during fiscal year 2007. The Investment
committee has also been restructured.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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06-12
Public Investment Act - Primary
Government — Noncompliance
(Cont.)

B. Investment Committee

Criteriaz The City’s Current Investment policy created an
investment committee, which was to include the City Manager,
Finance Director, City’s External Auditor, and City Attorney. The
purpose of the committee was to review annually the City's
investment policy and investment strategy. The Investment
Committee’s approval was also required for the City to obtain fully
collateralized repurchased agreements.

Statement of Condition The Investment Committee was never |
activated.

Cause of Condition: The City has not properly reviewed its
investment policy to comply with its policy.

Effect of Condition: The City did not fully comply with its
investment policy.

Recommendation: The City should decide whether to require an
investment committee as part of its investment policy. Although
having an investment committee is an excellent idea, it should
exclude the City External Auditor and City Attorney. The city
Should consider hiring a financial advisor to help the City and City
Attorney to draft the City’s new investment policy. The financial
advisor would also help the city and committee, if one is required,
with the City’s investments. If the Committee is required, the City
Commission should activate it.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has reviewed and revised the
Investment Policy during fiscal year 2007. The investment
committee has also been restructured.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

C. Investment Training

Criteria: Chapter 2256.008 of the Texas Government Code
requires that the City’s investment officer(s) attend at least one
training session from an independent source approved by the City
Commission and containing at least 10 hours of instruction relating
to the investment officers’ responsibilities within 12 months after
assuming duties and attend an investment training session not
less than once in a two year period and received not less than 10
hours of instruction relating to the investment officer's
responsibilities.

Statement of Condition Only one of the City investment officers
has attended the required training sessions during the required
time frame.

Cause of Condition: The City has not adopted an investment
policy in compliance with the Act.

Effect of Condition: The City did not comply with state law
regarding this matter.

Recommendation: The City should provide the required training
to the employees it designates as the City's Investment officers.
Auditee’s Response: The Auditee has designated two staff
persons as investment officers to meet training requirements and
will designate additional staff.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal Awards
Finding and Questioned Costs

Description

06-12
Public Investment Act = Primary
Government — Noncompliance,
(Cont.)

D. Investment Management Reporting

Criteria: Chapter 2256.023 of the Texas Government Code
requires that the City’s investment officer, not less than quarterly,
prepare and submit to the City Commission detailed written
report(s) of all investment transactions for all funds covered.
Statement of Condition: The City’s investment officer prepared
all of the required quarterly reports in fiscal year 2006, except for
the last quarter which was submitted in fiscal year 2007.

Cause of Condition: The City's Finance Department has not
given enough priority to these reports.

Effect of Condition: The City did not comply on a timely basis
with state law regarding this matter.

Recommendation: The City's investment officer should prepare
and submit internal investment management reports, minimally, on
a quarterly basis to the City Commission.

Auditee’s Response: Quarterly reports were submitted after
each respective quarter and will continue to be provided on a
timely basis to the City Commission.

Questioned Cost: $-0-
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Section Il — Financial Statement/Federal Awards
Findings and Questioned Costs

Description

06-13
Accounting Policies
and Procedures Manual — Pharr
Economic Development Corporation,
Inc. (PEDC)

Criteria: Good internal controls require that PEDC have written
accounting policies and procedures manual for the proper
handling and recording of financial transactions by the Finance
Department.

Statement of Condition: PEDC does not have a written policies
and procedures manual.

Cause of Condition: PEDC has not given priority to establishing
such a document.

Effect of Condition: there is no proper guidance for applicable
PEDC personnel to follow in accounting for financial transactions.
Recommendation: PEDC should hire a consultant to help it
establish written policies and procedures manual for its Finance
Department. Once the manual is approved by the Board, PEDC
should adhere to such policies and procedures.

Auditee’s Response: The Auditee’s proposed accounting
policies and procedures will be provided to PEDC as a guide for
accounting for their respective operations.

Questioned Cost: $-0-

Section lll - Contact Persons
Regarding Findings and
Questioned Costs

Primary Government
City of Pharr, Texas

Fred Sandoval, City Manager
108 S. Cage Blvd.

Pharr, Texas 78577

(956) 702-5300

Component Unit
Pharr Economic Development
Corporation, Inc.

Raul Garza, Executive Director
1215 S. Cage Blvd.

P.0O. Box 1360

Pharr, Texas 78577

(956) 781-7332

71




CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Internal Control / Compliance

Description

05-1
Accounting Policies
and Procedures Manual — Primary
Government

The City did not have a written accounting policies and procedures
manual for the proper handling and recording of financial
transactions by the Finance Department.

Corrective Action: See current year’s finding #06-1.

05-2
Purchasing — Primary Government

A. Purchasing Manual
The City did not have a written purchasing manual to ensure
compliance with state, federal, and legal requirements.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-2A.

B. Purchase Orders

The City prepared purchase orders (P.O.) for certain purchases of
goods, however P.O.s were not prepared for services,
construction contracts, or commitments via inter-local agreements.
In many instances P.Q.’s were prepared after the fact.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-2B.

05-3
Finance Department — Primary
Government

A. Training. Supervision., and Review:
Based on the results of our audit, certain staff under the Finance

Director were not properly trained and supervised to perform their |

assigned functions. There was no documentation to support that
the employee’s work was reviewed.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-3A.

B. Professional Development
The City does not have a formal program in place for the
professional development of its accounting staff.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-3B.

05-4
Fixed Assets—Primary Government

A. Capitalization Policies and Procedures

The City does not have written policies and procedures for the
proper capitalization of fixed assets purchased, constructed, or
received as donations, and also for the depreciation of depreciable
assets.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-4A.

B. Capitalization of Fixed Assets
The City did not capitalize fixed assets purchased or constructed
during the year on a timely basis

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-4B.

C. Subsidiary Ledger

The City’s fixed assets subsidiary ledger is incomplete and has not
been adjusted to reflect the fixed assets that the City owns and
has on hand.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-4C.
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SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Internal Control / Compliance

Description

06-5
Bank Reconciliations — Primary
Government

A. Preparation of Bank Reconciliations

Although the City prepared monthly bank reconciliations for all of
its bank accounts, it did not prepare them on a timely basis. Aiso,
it did not reconcile the book balances per bank reconciliations to
book balances per general ledgers on a timely basis.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-5A.

B. Review of Bank Reconciliations

There was no documentation to substantiate that supervisory
reviews of bank reconciliations were performed.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-5B.

05-6
Collateralization of Deposits
and Investments — Primary
Government

There was no documentation to substantiate the internal reviews
of collateralization were performed timely as the year progressed |
to ensure that the depository institutions had maintained adequate "
collateralization on the City's deposits and investments as of and

for the year ended September 30, 2006. Documentation provided f

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-6.

05-7
Golf Course Inventories — Primary
Government

The City only conducts annual counts of inventories at the Pro |
Shop. No reconciliation is performed between the most recent |
inventory and the preceding inventory.

|
|
|
1

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-7. [

'

05-8
Golf Course Revenues - Primary
Government

A. Accounting System

The current Golf Course accounting system is ineffective and |
unreliable. The City should replace the current system with cash |
registers and software that will provide more accurate, properly |
controlled, and protected information. The accounting system |
should be networked and compatible with the City's Accounting |
system. Until the system is replaced, the Finance Department
should review submitted daily report information for negative sale
transactions and unapproved voided transactions.

Corrective Action: See current year’s finding #06-8A. 5

B. Policies and Procedures Manual
The City does not have written accounting policies and
procedures manuals for its Golf Course Operations. |

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #08-8B

05-9
Process to correct prior audit
Findings — Primary Government

The City does not have a process in place to address and correct
prior year's audit findings.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-9.
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF STATUS OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Internal Control / Compliance Description
05-10 A. Subsidiary Ledger
Municipal Court - Primary Although the City currently maintains warrant reports for the above
Government noted tickets, some of the information is maintained in the

computer system and some is not. Also, nobody has verified that
there is warrant for each citation ticket listed in the warrant report.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-10A.

B. Policies and Procedures Manual
The City does not have a written accounting policies and
procedures manual for its municipal operations.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-108.

C. Training i
The individual, who is responsible for recording daily collections |
and preparing applicable reports, was unfamiliar with the types of
reports that can be generated by the software currently being
used by the Municipal court. .

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-10C.

05-11 A. Administration
Grants — Primary Government During fiscal year 2005, the City did not properly record financial
transactions related to these grants in the general ledger on a
timely basis.

Corrective Action: See current year’s finding #06-11A.

B. Grant Funds

Except for the CDBG and the Technical Assistance Agreements
Grants, all other grants that the City administered in fiscal year
2005 were accounted for in the City’s General Fund.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-11B.

05-12 A. Investment Policy
Public Investment Act - Primary The City has not updated its written investment policy that
Government - Noncompliance addresses the requirements of the Public Investments Act. (The

Act.). Although the City reviewed and made a minor change to its
investment policy in December 2005, it did not make the required
changes to satisfy all requirements of the Act.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-12A.

B. Investment Committee
The Investment Committee was never activated.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-12B

C. Investment Training
Only one of the City investment officers has attended the required
training sessions during the required time frame.

Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-12B
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T
Internal Control / Compliance Description ]
05-13 |
Accounting Policies PEDC does not have a written policies and procedures manual. ."
and Procedures Manual — Pharr [
Economic Development Corporation, Corrective Action: See current year's finding #06-13.
Inc. (PEDC)
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006
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CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Federal Grantor/ Federal Pass-Through
Pass-Through Grantor/ CFDA Entity Identifying
Program Title Number Number

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
Passed Through Direct Programs:

Operation Task Force 21.00 106SA1598
Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Passed Through Passed Through Governor's Division of Criminal Justice:

Juvenile Accountability Incentive Grant 16.523 JB-03-J20-18162-01
Passed Through Direct Programs:

COPS In School 16.710 2002UMX0287

COPS In School 16.710 2003UMX0258

Total Passed Through Direct Programs
Passed Through Direct Program:

Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607 2006BUBX0603042
Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPEMNT
Passed Through Direct Programs:
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-04-MC-48-0507
Community Development Block Grant 14.218 B-05-MC-48-0507
Total Passed Through Direct Programs
Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPEMNT

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through Passed Through Governor's Division of Emergency Management:
State Homeland Security Grant Program 97.004 2004SHSP-57200
State Homeland Security Grant Program 97.004 20058HSP-57200
Total Passed Through Passed Through Governor's Division of Emergency Management

Total U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

NATIONAL TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
Passed Through Passed Through State Department of Traansportation:

STEP-CIOT* 20.804 586XXF6180
STEP - Comprehensive Grant 20.605 586XXFB043
STEP - IDM 20.605 585XXF6181-02

Total Passed Through Passed Through State Department of Traansportation
Total NATIONAL TRAFFIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

" Indicates clustered program under OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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EXHIBIT D-1

Federal
Expenditures

33,333
16,000
57,817
72,817

11,625

117,775

508,010
768,367
1,276,377

1,276,377

8,693
32,105
40,797

40,797

5,320

70,173
6,163
81,655

81,655
1,555,995



CITY OF PHARR, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of City Of
Pharr, Texas and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule
is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, AUDITS OF STATES, LOCAL
GOVERNMENTS, AND NON-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general purpose financial statements.
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